‘ Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION

64" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
ON-LINE VIDEO CONFERENCE
AND IN-PERSON MEETING

Ball’s Falls Centre for Conservation
Glen Elgin Room
3292 Sixth Avenue, Jordan, ON

Friday, February 17, 2023
9:30 A.M.
AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER (ROLL CALL)

The Niagara Peninsula watershed is situated within the traditional territory of the
Haudenosaunee, Attiwonderonk (Neutral), and the Anishinaabeg, including the
Mississaugas of the Credit—many of whom continue to live and work here today. This
territory is covered by the Upper Canada Treaties (No. 3, 4, and 381) and is within the land
protected by the Dish with One Spoon Wampum agreement. Today, the watershed is home
to many First Nations, Métis, and Inuit peoples. Through the 2021-2031 Strategic Plan, we
re-confirm our commitment to shared stewardship of natural resources and deep
appreciation of Indigenous culture and history in the watershed.

1. GREETINGS BY THE CHAIR
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion:

THAT the Agenda for the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority’s
64" Annual General Meeting held on Friday, February 17, 2023 BE
APPROVED as presented.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
4, CONCLUSION OF 2022 BUSINESS

Chair Foster will offer departing comments, formally declare the 2022
business year concluded, and the Chair / Vice Chair position will be
deemed vacant.

Motion:

1. THAT the Board of Directors CONCLUDE the business of 2022.

2. AND FURTHER THAT the Chair and Vice Chair seats BE
DECLARED vacant.



Annual General Meeting Agenda
February 17, 2023

Page |2

ROLL CALL 2023 BOARD MEMBERS

The 2023 Business portion of the meeting will be called to order by
Chandra Sharma, Chief Administrative Officer of the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority. Roll Call is taken again to confirm attendance for
the purposes of the elections.

Listing of Members Appointed for the 2023-2026 Term of the NPCA
Board (For Receipt)

ELECTIONS / APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS

The election of officers for 2022 will be conducted by Chandra Sharma,
Chief Administrative Officer. Positions are required for Chair and Vice
Chair of the NPCA for 2022 and must be appointed members from the
Board of Directors. (Haldimand and Niagara Members are eligible for
Chair; Haldimand and Hamilton Members are eligible for Vice Chair.)

Appointment of Scrutineers

In the event that there is more than one nominee for either position of
Chair or Vice Chair and a vote is held, scrutineers are appointed for
oversight of the ballot tallying process.

Motion:
THAT in the event of a vote for the position of Chair and/or Vice Chair,
Grant Bivol and WILL ACT as scrutineers.

Election of Officers

Chair of the Authority

Motion:
THAT BE APPOINTED as Chair of the Board
of Directors of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority for 2023.

Vice Chair of the Authority

Motion:

THAT BE APPOINTED as Vice Chair of the
Board of Directors of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority for
2023.

Upon formal approval of the Chair and Vice Chair appointments, the
newly appointed Chair presides over the remainder of the meeting.

Page #1



Annual General Meeting Agenda
February 17, 2023
Page |3

c) Appointment to Conservation Ontario for 2023

Conservation Ontario represents the association of the 36 Conservation
Authorities in Ontario. It is the practice of NPCA to request the Chair, or
his/her designate, and the Chief Administrative Officer to represent
NPCA on Conservation Ontario’s Committees and Council.

Motion:

THAT the , Chair of NPCA for 2023, or Vice Chair
acting as his/her designate, BE the Authority’s
voting delegate to Conservation Ontario.

AND FURTHER THAT the Chief Administrative Officer BE the alternate
delegate.

d) Appointment to The Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation

Motion:
THAT and BE APPOINTED
to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation for 2023.

e) Appointment to the Finance Committee

Motion:

THAT the following Board Members BE APPOINTED to the Finance
Committee for 2023: ,

and

f)  Appointment to Governance Committee

Motion:
THAT the following Board Members BE APPOINTED to the Governance
Committee for 2023: Brad Clark, Michelle Seaborn, and

g) Signing Officers (If required)

Motion:

THAT the Authority’'s Chair ,  Vice Chair
,  the Chief Administrative Officer/Secretary-
Treasurer Chandra Sharma, and the Director Corporate Services, Lise
Gagnon, or any two of them ARE hereby AUTHORIZED to sign, make,
draw, accept, endorse and deliver cheques, promissory notes, bills of
exchange, orders for the payment of money and such agreements and
instruments as may be necessary or useful in connection with the
operation of the said account.




Annual

General Meeting Agenda

February 17, 2023

d)

Page |4

AND FURTHER THAT any one of the above-mentioned officers IS
hereby AUTHORIZED for and in the name of the Organization to
endorse and transfer to the Bank for deposit or discount with or
collection by the Bank (but for the credit of the Organization only)
cheques, promissory notes, bills of exchange, orders for the payment of
money and other instruments, to arrange, settle, balance and certify all
books and accounts with the Bank and to sign receipts for vouchers.

Appointment of Auditors

Motion:
THAT the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority APPOINTS KPMG
LLP as its auditors for the 2023 fiscal year.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes of the Full Authority Meeting dated December 16, 2022 (For
Approval

Minutes of the Closed Session Meeting dated December 16, 2022 (For
Approval: to remain private and confidential — to be circulated under
separate cover)

CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence dated December 19, 2022 to Provincial Land Use
Plans from Leslie Rich, Policy and Planning Specialist, Conservation
Ontario  RE: Review of A Place to Grow and Provincial Policy
Statement (ERO#019-6177). (For Receipt)

Page # 2

Page # 10

Correspondence dated December 28, 2022 to Conservation authorities
and participating municipalities, Conservation Ontario and the
Association of Municipalities of Ontario from Jennifer Keyes, Director,
Resources Planning and Development Policy Branch Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry RE: Legislative and regulation changes
affecting conservation authorities (For Receipt)

Page # 15

Correspondence dated December 20, 2022 to Chandra Sharma NPCA
CAOQO from Evelyn Eichenbaum, Clerk, Haldimand County RE: Council
Appointments as of November 15, 2022 (For Receipt)

Page # 18

PRESENTATIONS

NPCA Employee Service Awards Presentation

2022 NPCA Year in Review Video (For Receipt)




Annual

General Meeting Agenda

February 17, 2023

10.

a)

11.

d)

12.
13.
14.
15.

a)

16.

Page |5
CONSENT ITEMS
Report No. FA-49-22 RE: 2022 NPCA Quarterly Progress Report 3

Required for Conservation Authorities Act Amendments - Transition Plan
and Agreements - O Reg 687-21 (For Receipt)

Page # 19
DISCUSSION ITEMS

Report No. FA-01-23 RE: Board of Directors’ 2022 Meeting Schedule
For Approval

Page # 23

Report No. FA-02-23 RE: Updated Administrative By-Law (For Approval)
Page # 27

Report No. FA-03-23 RE: Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority
(NPCA) — Appointment of Requlations Officers (For Approval)

Page # 93

Report No. FA-04-23 RE: Updated Public Advisory Committee Terms of
Reference (For Approval)

Page # 96
COMMITTEE REPORTS
MOTIONS
NOTICES OF MOTION
NEW BUSINESS

Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation Update — Verbal (For

Receipt)
ADJOURNMENT




Listing of Members Appointed for the
2023-2026 Term of the NPCA Board

Niagara:

Elected Representatives (4)
Robert Foster
Brian Grant

Diana Huson
Michelle Seaborn

Citizen Appointee (1)

e TBD

Haldimand:

Elected Representatives (2)

o Patrick O’Neill
o« John Metcalfe

Hamilton:
Elected Representatives (2)

e Mark Tadeson
o Brad Clark

Citizen Appointee (1)

e TBD

Provincial Agricultural Representative (1)

e TBD

As of February 17, 2023



‘ Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION
FULL AUTHORITY
IN-PERSON AND
ONLINE VIDEO CONFERENCE
MEETING MINUTES

Friday, December 16, 2022
9:30 A.M.

Ball’s Falls Centre for Conservation
Glen Elgin Room
3292 Sixth Avenue, Jordan, On

NOTE: The archived recorded meeting is available on the NPCA website. The recorded video of
the Full Authority meeting is not considered the official record of that meeting. The official
record of the Full Authority meeting shall consist solely of the Minutes approved by the
Full Authority Board. NPCA Administrative By-law

MEMBERS PRESENT: . Foster (Chair)
. Beattie

. Brady

. Cridland
Feor
Hellinga

. Huson
Ingrao
Kawall
Mackenzie
Metcalfe
Smith
Steele

. Woodhouse
. Wright

WEOWMEWXCOSCrOTM T

MEMBERS ABSENT: B. Clark
W.Rapley
R. Shirton

STAFF PRESENT: C. Sharma, CAO / Secretary — Treasurer
G. Bivol, Clerk
E. Baldin, Manager, Land Planning
A. Christie, Director, Land Operations
D. Deluce, Senior Manager, Environmental Planning and Policy
M. Ferrusi, Manager, People and Performance
L. Gagnon, Director, Corporate Services
T. Gaade, Program, Coordinator, Watershed Strategies and Climate
Research
E. Gervais, Procurement Specialist
S. Gillis, Restoration Specialist
N. Green, Manager, Climate Change and Special Programs
L. Lee-Yates, Director, Watershed Management




S. MacPherson, Restoration Specialist

S. Miller, Senior Manager, Infrastructure Engineering and Asset
Management

A. Powell, Manager, Conservation Areas Programs and Services
K. Royer, Coordinator, Community Engagement

G. Shaule, Administrative Assistant

G. Verkade, Senior Manager, Integrated Watershed Planning

ALSO PRESENT: Brian Grant

Patrick O’Neill
Michelle Seaborn

Chair Foster called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m..

1.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Resolution No. FA-117-2022
Moved by Member Wright
Seconded by Member Woodhouse

THAT the agenda for the Full Authority Meeting dated December 16, 2022 BE APPROVED.
CARRIED

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None declared.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes of the Full Authority Meeting dated November 18, 2022

Resolution No. FA-118-2022
Moved by Member Ingrao
Seconded by Member Mackenzie

THAT the minutes of the Full Authority Meeting dated November 18, 2022 BE ADOPTED.
CARRIED

CHAIR’S UPDATE

Chair Foster spoke on the accomplishments of the past term and thanked Members for
their hard work.

CORRESPONDENCE

Email dated November 17, 2022 from Angela McRae, Legislative Coordinator, City of
Hamilton RE: Council Appointments to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority Board
Page |2

Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022




of Directors

Correspondence dated December 2, 2022, from Ann-Marie Norio Regional, Clerk RE:
Regional Councillor Appointments to Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority Board

Correspondence dated November 30, 2022 from Bonnie Fox Policy and Planning Director,
Conservation Ontario to the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry RE: Conservation
Ontario’s Comments on “Legislative and regulatory proposals affecting Conservation
Authorities to support the Housing Supply Action Plan 3.0” (ERO #019-6141) - Member
Huson posed questions.

Correspondence dated November 23, 2022 from David Deluce, Senior Manager,
Environmental Planning and Policy to MNRF - PD - Resources Planning and Development
Policy Branch RE: NPCA Comments Proposed Updates to the Ontario Wetland Evaluation
System ERO Posting #019-6160 - Member Huson posed questions to staff.

Correspondence dated December 4, 2022 from David Deluce, MCIP, RPP Senior Manager,
Environmental Planning and Policy Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing RE: NPCA
Comments Proposed Amendments to the Greenbelt Plan and Proposed Amendments to the
Greenbelt Area Boundary Regulation ERO Postings #019-6216 and 019-6217

Resolution No. FA-119-2022
Moved by Member Hellinga
Seconded by Member Brady

THAT the following correspondence BE RECEIVED:

o Email dated November 17, 2022 from Angela McRae, Legislative Coordinator, City of
Hamilton RE: Council Appointments to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority
Board of Directors;

e Correspondence dated December 2, 2022, from Ann-Marie Norio Regional, Clerk RE:
Regional Councillor Appointments to Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority Board,;

e Correspondence dated November 30, 2022 from Bonnie Fox Policy and Planning
Director, Conservation Ontario to the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry RE:
Conservation Ontario’s Comments on “Legislative and regulatory proposals affecting
Conservation Authorities to support the Housing Supply Action Plan 3.0” (ERO #019-
6141);

e Correspondence dated November 23, 2022 from David Deluce, Senior Manager,
Environmental Planning and Policy to MNRF - PD - Resources Planning and
Development Policy Branch RE: NPCA Comments Proposed Updates to the Ontario
Wetland Evaluation System ERO Posting #019-6160; and

o Correspondence dated December 4, 2022 from David Deluce, MCIP, RPP Senior
Manager, Environmental Planning and Policy Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
RE: NPCA Comments Proposed Amendments to the Greenbelt Plan and Proposed
Amendments to the Greenbelt Area Boundary Regulation ERO Postings #019-6216 and
019-621.

CARRIED

PRESENTATIONS

Presentation by Tom Insinna, Chair Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation RE:

Page |3
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



Annual Update on NPCF and Fundraising Strategy — NPCF Chair Tom Insinna addressed
the Board speaking on the Foundation’s achievements, strategic directions, its fundraising
strategy, the $5 Million Giving Fundraiser and donations for NPCA projects and events in
2022. He acknowledged the donations from Members of the NPCA Board and thanked the
NPCA staff for their efforts. Members posed questions. Discussion ensued.

Resolution No. FA-120-2022
Moved by Member Feor
Seconded by Member Smith

THAT the verbal presentation by NPCF Chair Tom Insinna BE RECEIVED.

CARRIED
b) Presentation by Adam Christie, Director, Conservation Areas and Steve Miller, Senior
Manager, Infrastructure Engineering and Asset Management RE: Progress Update —
Infrastructure Projects — Messrs. Christie and Miller presented via PowerPoint providing
visuals of projects completed on NPCA properties and Conservation Areas. Members
posed questions on Long Beach, Rockway, Chippawa and Binbrook Conservations Areas.
Resolution No. FA-121-2022
Moved by Member Wright
Seconded by Member Steele
THAT the PowerPoint presentation by Adam Christie, Director, Conservation Areas and
Steve Miller, Senior Manager, Infrastructure Engineering and Asset Management RE:
Progress Update — Infrastructure Projects BE RECEIVED.
CARRIED
7. DELEGATIONS
None
8. CONSENT ITEMS
a) Report No. FA-48-22 RE: Progress Update on Indigenous Engagement Initiatives
Resolution No. FA-122-2022
Moved by Member Kawall
Seconded by Member Metcalfe
THAT Report No. FA-48-22 RE: Progress Update on Indigenous Engagement Initiatives
BE RECEIVED for information.
CARRIED
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a) Report No. FA-50-22 RE: Climate Change Action Plan Framework and Progress Update -

Natalie Green, Manager, Climate Change and Special Programs and Tara Gaade, Program,
Page |4
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



b)

Coordinator, Watershed Strategies and Climate Research were on hand to present the report
and address Members’ questions to staff.

Resolution No. FA-123-2022

Moved by Member Huson
Seconded by Member Cridland

1. THAT Report No. FA-50-22 RE: Climate Change Action Plan Framework and Progress
Update and associated presentation BE RECEIVED.

2. AND FURTHER THAT the final Climate Change Action Plan be presented to the Board
of Directors for approval in Q1 of 2023.
CARRIED

Report No. FA-51-22 RE: Enhanced Watershed Restoration and Stewardship Program -
Leilani Lee-Yates, Director, Watershed Management addressed questions.

Resolution No. FA-124-2022
Moved by Member Hellinga
Seconded by Member Wright

1. THAT Report No. FA-51-22 RE: Enhanced Watershed Restoration and Stewardship
Program BE RECEIVED.

2. THAT staff DEVELOP program details, including guidelines, cost estimates, and staffing
requirements in accordance with the recommendations within the “Enhanced Watershed
Restoration and Stewardship Program” attached as Appendix 1.

3. AND THAT staff Report No. FA-51-2022 BE CIRCULATED to NPCA watershed
municipalities in support of continued memorandum of understanding/ service level

agreement discussions.
CARRIED

Report No. FA-52-22 RE: Contract Award — KPMG LLP — External Audit Services — Lise
Gagnon, Director, Corporate Services and Eric Gervais, Procurement Specialist addressed
Members’ questions.

Resolution No. FA-125-2022
Moved by Member Beattie
Seconded by Member Ingrao

1. THAT Report No. FA-52-22 RE: Contract Award —- KPMG LLP — External Financial Audit
Services BE RECEIVED.

2. THAT the Board APPROVES the NPCA External Financial Audit Services contract
award to KPMG LLP for an annual upset limit of $40,300 (plus non-recoverable HST)
with an annual price escalation of 2% for a 3-year term (2022-2024) with two (2) one-
year extensions.

3. THAT staff BE AUTHORIZED to execute all necessary documents as appropriate.
CARRIED

Page |5
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



d)

Report No. FA-53-22 RE: Fees Policy — Ms. Lee-Yates responded to questions regarding
chargebacks.

Resolution No. FA-126-2022
Moved by Member Mackenzie
Seconded by Member Woodhouse

1. THAT Report No. FA-53-22 RE: Fees Policy BE RECEIVED.

2. AND THAT the Fees Policy Appendix 1 of Report No. FA-53-22 Fees Policy BE
APPROVED, with an effective date of December 16, 2022.
CARRIED

Report No. FA-54-22 RE: Contract Award — Compensation Review and Salary
Administration Project - Misti Ferrusi, Manager, People and Performance offered comment.

Resolution No. FA-127-2022
Moved by Member Brady
Seconded by Member Huson

1. THAT Report No. FA-54-22 RE: Contract Award — Compensation Review and Salary
Administration Project BE RECEIVED.

2. AND THAT authorized staff BE DIRECTED to execute the award of contract for RFP
number NPCA-2022-025 to Pesce & Associates Human Resources Consultants for a
total cost not to exceed $54,400 (plus non-recoverable HST), plus 10% contingency (if
deemed necessary by NPCA staff), plus applicable taxes.

CARRIED

Report No. FA-55-22 RE: Land Securement Strateqy 2022-2032 — Ms. Lee-Yates spoke to
the report.

Resolution No. FA-128-2022
Moved by Member Smith
Seconded by Member Metcalfe

1. THAT Report No. FA-55-22 RE: Land Securement Strategy 2022-2032, BE
APPROVED.

2. THAT staff DEVELOP a Conservation Areas Strategy as per the Conservation
Authorities Act, O. Reg 686/21 (Sec. 9 (1).1) and update the Land Securement Strategy
as may be necessary to support the implementation of the Conservation Areas Strategy,
Bill 23 and its associated regulations.

3. THAT staff ENGAGE municipal partners, land trusts, Indigenous organizations, the
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation, and Public Advisory Committee to seek
input on the Conservation Areas Strategy and to explore partnerships toward future land
securement.

4. THAT staff DEVELOP policy to guide decision-making regarding land acquisition and
disposition, as per the Conservation Authorities Act, O. Reg 686/21 (Sec. 9 (2)(vi)).

Page |6
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



5. AND FURTHER THAT staff REPORT back to the Board of Directors during Q1 of each
calendar year on annual securement successes and highlight securement targets for
the upcoming year.

CARRIED
g) Report No. FA-56-22 RE: Status Update RE: CA Programs and Services Further to Royal

Assent of Bill 23 — This report was circulated under separate cover. Ms. Lee-Yates presented

the report.

Resolution No. FA-129-2022

Moved by Member Hellinga

Seconded by Member Feor

1. THAT Report No. FA-56-22 RE: Status Update RE: CA Programs and Services Further
to Royal Assent of Bill 23 BE APPROVED.

2. AND FURTHER THAT staff CIRCULATE Report No. FA-56-22 to NPCA watershed
municipalities as information and post the report to the NPCA Planning and Permits
webpage.

CARRIED
10. COMMITTEE ITEMS
10.1 PUBLIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE
a) Minutes from the Meeting of the Public Advisory Committee dated December 1, 2022

Resolution No. FA-130-2022

Moved by Member Smith

Seconded by Member Kawall

THAT the minutes from the meeting of the Public Advisory Committee dated December 1,

2022 BE RECEIVED.

CARRIED
11. NOTICES OF MOTION
None
12. MOTIONS
None
13. NEW BUSINESS
a) C.A.O. Updates — Verbal — CAO Sharma spoke acknowledging the accomplishments and

conclusion of this term of the Board thanking the membership for their contributions.

Page |7
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



b) Niagara Peninsula Conservation Foundation — Verbal Update — Having heard the delegation
by NPCF Chair Insinna, no further update was given.

14. CLOSED SESSION

a) Personal Matters about Identifiable Individual(s), including NPCA Employees — Chief
Administrative Officer Performance Evaluation - It was noted that Misti Ferrusi, Manager of
People and Performance would be the recording secretary for the purposes of the closed
session.

Resolution No. FA-131-2022
Moved by Member Brady
Seconded by Member Woodhouse

THAT the Board PROCEED into closed session at 11:23 a.m. in accordance with Section
10.1 of the Administrative By-law to discuss personal matters about identifiable
individual(s), including NPCA employees, more specifically for the purpose of the Chief
Administrative Officer performance evaluation.

CARRIED

Resolution No. FA-132-2022
Moved by Member Wright
Seconded by Member Woodhouse

THAT the closed session BE ADJOURNED at 12:42 p.m. and the Board RECONVENE in
open session.

CARRIED
Resolution No. FA-133-2022
Moved by Member Wright
Seconded by Member Woodhouse
THAT staff BE DIRECTED to proceed as instructed in closed session.
CARRIED
15. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 12:44 p.m..
Robert Foster, Chair Chandra Sharma, MCIP, RPP
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority Chief Administrative Officer / Secretary-
Treasurer

Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority

Page |8
Full Authority Meeting Minutes — December 16, 2022



Conservation
ONTARIO

Natural Champions

Provincial Land Use Plans Branch
777 Bay Street, 13" Floor
Toronto, ON

M7A 2J3

Submitted via email: growthplanning@ontario.ca

December 19, 2022
RE: Review of A Place to Grow and Provincial Policy Statement (ERO#019-6177).
To Whom It May Concern:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the “Review of A Place to Grow and Provincial Policy
Statement” (ERO#019-6177). Conservation Ontario is the network of Ontario’s 36 Conservation
Authorities (CAs). The following comments are not intended to limit consideration of comments shared
individually by CAs through this review and consultation process.

Conservation Ontario is pleased to provide these preliminary comments on this consultation, however,
we are concerned about the lack of detail in the proposal. The scope of this consultation limits CAs and
other stakeholders from providing detailed feedback on a new policy instrument. It is recommended
that once the Province has advanced this policy work further, that additional consultation be
undertaken to ensure appropriate feedback can be provided. To ensure strong delivery of Conservation
Authorities’ mandatory programs and services, Conservation Ontario is not supportive of the Province
making changes to S. 3.1 of the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) without direct consultation with the
Conservation Authorities in advance. The Province is encouraged to build off the success of the multi-
stakeholder Conservation Authorities Working Group (CAWG) to seek direct input from CAs and other
stakeholders on proposed changes throughout this review process.

The Environmental Registry of Ontario posting acknowledges that “[b]oth policy documents aims to
support the achievement of liveable communities, a thriving economy, a clean and healthy environment
and social equity, improving the quality of life for all Ontarians”. The government is proposing to
integrate the PPS and A Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (Growth Plan)
into a new province-wide policy instrument. It is noted that the proposal focuses almost exclusively on
the provision of housing with limited mention of balancing other provincial priorities. In updating a
foundational document such as the PPS, the Province is also encouraged to consider the full range of
provincial interests, as articulated in section 2 of the Planning Act.

It is understood that the Province is seeking to introduce new flexibility and facilitate faster decisions
with a new provincial planning policy instrument. Both objectives could be reasonably supported by
providing more certainty and precision with respect to provincial policy directions.

Page 1 of 5

10


mailto:growthplanning@ontario.ca

It is noted that there has been a significant amount of change within the provincial planning system in
recent years. The current PPS, 2020 is just over 24 months old and was introduced as part of a Housing
Supply Action Plan. The current Growth Plan was issued in August 2020 following previous significant
revisions in 2019 and 2017. There have also been frequent changes to the Planning Act. The current
proposal is to replace the PPS and the Growth Plan with another planning policy instrument. All
together, these frequent revisions have eroded certainty regarding land use planning policy direction. To
increase the speed of approvals, the Province should commit to policy certainty for a defined period of
time following the issuance of the new planning policy instrument to allow municipalities and others the
ability to focus on implementation with certainty.

Clear, precise policy language and, most importantly, up-to-date implementation guidance would
facilitate both flexibility and speed. If, as proposed, a new provincial planning policy instrument is
issued, comprehensive and precise implementing guidance should be provided concurrently with the
issuance of the new instrument.

Finally, to aid local implementation, the Province should maintain the principle that both provincial
policy and guidance represent “minimums” which local decision-makers may build upon to suit their
local conditions and needs.

Conservation Ontario offers the following responses to the questions provided in the Environmental
Registry posting.

1. What are your thoughts on the proposed core elements to be included in a streamlined province-
wide land use planning policy instrument?

The Province has identified the following core elements to be included in a streamlined province-wide
land use planning instrument: residential land supply, attainable housing supply and mix, growth
management, environment and natural resources, community infrastructure, and a streamlined
planning framework.

Conservation Ontario has concerns with the description of natural and human-made hazards as found
within the environment and natural resources core element. The consultation indicates that there will
be “streamlined and clarified policy direction for development in hazard areas, while continuing to
protect people and property in areas of highest risk” (emphasis added). The current PPS indicates that
“development shall generally be directed...to areas outside of [hazard areas].” While there is scant
information provided, this has the potential to significantly shift hazard management in Ontario.

Conservation Ontario is not supportive of allowing development in hazard areas as a general principle
and notes that the Province lacks sufficient technical information to limit development only in areas of
highest risk. Ontario’s Special Advisor on Flooding noted that “Ontario has a long history of taking
actions to keep people and property safe from the impacts of flooding through land use planning
policies and mitigative activities. The development of the modern floodplain policy in Ontario, the
watershed approach, the conservation authority model, and the flood standards have been extremely
effective at reducing flood risks, especially in new greenfield development areas”.

Page 2 of 5

11



Recommendations from the Flood Advisor’s report included the strengthening of Section 3.1 of the PPS
to include climate change as well as recommending that the Province “support Municipalities and
Conservation Authorities to ensure the conservation, restoration and creation of natural green
infrastructure (i.e., wetlands, forest cover, pervious surfaces) during land use planning to reduce runoff
and mitigate the impacts of flooding”.

Conservation Ontario recommends that the following core elements be included in a streamlined
province-wide land use planning policy instrument:

a) Natural Hazard Policy:

Conservation Ontario recommends that the current natural hazard policies be carried forward in their
entirety. The natural hazard policies should not be viewed as discretionary; they are vital aspects of
public policy that protect people’s lives, their safety and their property, ensuring the long-term
prosperity of Ontarians and supporting the investment of Ontarians in their homes. Moving forward
there must continue to be specific policy direction in a future policy instrument that will reduce risk to
people from natural hazards, direct development away from hazards, not create new, or aggravate
existing hazards and address the increased risks presented by the changing climate.

In order to streamline land use planning in Ontario, it is strongly recommended that the Province work
with CAs, Municipalities and the development sector to update technical guidance to protect people and
property from hazards to support land use planning decisions under the PPS and permit decisions under
S. 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act.

In addition, the Province could consider broadening the use of Special Policy Areas (SPAs) to address
existing development in high risk areas, including areas subject to erosion (e.g., along Great Lakes
shorelines).

b) Watershed-Scale Planning

In order to continue to streamline planning approvals, it is recommended that the Province retain the
watershed as the ecologically meaningful scale for integrated and long-term planning as well as the
foundation for considering cumulative impacts of development. This will help to minimize cross-
jurisdictional and upstream and downstream impacts of development.

c) Provincial Water Policy

Conservation Ontario recommends that the Province brings forward the provincial water policy found
within the PPS, especially the direction to “protect, improve or restore the quality and quantity of
water”. The provincial water policy is necessary to ensure the protection of municipal drinking water
supplies.

d) Natural Heritage

Conservation Ontario recognizes that a healthy ecosystem is essential to maintain resiliency on the
landscape. Natural heritage features such as forests and wetlands play an important role to help reduce
flows and store floodwaters, which reduces risk and allows people greater response time to flooding
emergencies. In addition, impacts to a wetland’s hydrology can result in local flooding.

Page 3 of 5

12



Beyond its intrinsic value, it is noted that often the natural heritage, water resource and natural hazard
systems are inextricably linked, therefore the protection of all of these systems is necessary to support
the maintenance of healthy watersheds and to best protect public health and safety.

2. What land use planning policies should the government use to increase the supply of housing and
support a diversity of housing types?

e Work collaboratively with Municipalities and CAs to identify areas that are subject to new, rapid
growth. These areas should be targeted for provincial investment in watershed-scale (or
subwatershed) studies to delineate where and how missing middle development can occur.

e Update and harmonize the provincial Natural Hazard Technical Guides which support the
modernization of the provincial land-use planning and CA regulatory processes.

e Continue the work of the Provincial Floodplain Mapping Technical Team lead by MNRF.
Implementation of a provincial framework for floodplain mapping would provide clarity on areas
where intensification could occur and where it should not occur due to lack of safe access or the
presence of flooding hazards.

e Update the 1993 provincial Watershed Planning Guidelines and finalize the recent draft
Subwatershed Planning Guide (2022) based on Environmental Registry of Ontario feedback
(ERO# 019-4978). Updated guidelines for subwatershed studies would assist Municipalities, CAs,
the development community and other agencies to define clear roles and responsibilities,
streamline technical study requirements, compress timelines, and facilitate approvals for new
development.

3. How should the government further streamline land use planning policy to increase the supply of
housing?

Comprehensive, up-to-date implementation guidance with ongoing implementation support would
further streamline land use planning policy. Regarding environmental policy, the Province should
provide an update to the Natural Heritage Reference Manual and related guidance (there is no manual
to support the 2020, PPS, for example) or with respect to Natural Hazards (current information supports
the 1996/7 PPS and was last published in 2001 but dates from the 1980’s/early 1990’s era).

Both up-to-date guidance and continual implementation support would increase consistency and
certainty with regard to planning outcomes. Should the government issue a new provincial planning
policy instrument, it is recommended that implementation guidance should be provided concurrently
with the issuance of the new policy instrument.

4. What policy concepts from the Provincial Policy Statement and A Place to Grow are helpful for
ensuring there is a sufficient supply and mix of housing and should be included in the new policy
document?

Within the PPS, the hierarchy of accommodating residential growth for a minimum of 15 years first
through residential intensification and redevelopment as a priority and then only in newly designated
growth areas should be retained or strengthened (1.4.1). Establishing and implementing minimum
targets for housing which is affordable to low and moderate income households should be retained or
strengthened (1.4.3). Policies encouraging transit-supportive development and residential
intensification should also be retained or strengthened (1.8.1 €)).

Page 4 of 5

13



Within the Growth Plan, minimum greenfield densities and intensification targets should be retained
and increased to provide more supply and make more efficient use of land. The concept of urban growth
centres and major transit station areas with related policy directions should also be retained and
strengthened.

5. What policy concepts in the Provincial Policy Statement and A Place to Grow should be
streamlined or not included in the new policy document?

Any streamlining of policy should ensure that the Province maintains the right balance by providing
policy direction on all matters of provincial interest, as articulated in the Planning Act. Items related to
the protection of people and property should not be considered discretionary and therefore must be
included in the new policy document.

Comprehensive and up-to-date implementation guidance with ongoing implementation support would
further streamline land use planning policy. Both up-to-date guidance and continual implementation
support would increase consistency and certainty with regard to planning outcomes. Should the
government issue a new provincial planning policy instrument it is recommended that implementation
support materials be released concurrently. Once issued, ongoing implementation support from the
Province will continue to support planning approval authorities.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the “Review of A Place to Grow and Provincial
Policy Statement”. Should you have any questions about this letter, please contact me at extension 226.

Sincerely,

i i

Leslie Rich, RPP
Policy and Planning Specialist

c.c. All CA CAOs/GMs

Conservation Ontario
120 Bayview Parkway, Newmarket ON L3Y 3W3

www.conservationontario.ca

Page 5 of 5

14



Ontario @

Ministry of Natural Resources and Ministére des Richesses naturelles et

Forestry des Foréts

Resources Planning and Development Direction des politiques de planification et

Policy Branch d'exploitation des ressources

Policy Division Division de I'élaboration des politiques

300 Water Street 300, rue Water

Peterborough, ON K9J 3C7 Peterborough (Ontario) K9J 3C7

To: Conservation authorities and participating municipalities, Conservation

Ontario and the Association of Municipalities of Ontario

From: Jennifer Keyes, Director
Date: December 28, 2022
Subject: Legislative and regulation changes affecting conservation authorities

Good afternoon,

| am writing to provide you with information on amendments to the Conservation
Authorities Act made as part of the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022, as well as two
regulations that have been approved by the province in support of Ontario’s Housing
Supply Action Plan, both of which will come into effect on January 1, 2023. In addition, the
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry has issued a direction regarding fees that will
be distributed separately from this letter. A notice will be posted to the Environmental
Registry of Ontario (ERO) in the coming weeks regarding these decisions.

Legislative Amendments

As you are likely aware, the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 was passed this Fall,
receiving Royal Assent on November 28, 2022. Several changes were made to the
Conservation Authorities Act that are intended to further focus conservation authorities on
their core mandate, support faster and less costly approvals, streamline conservation
authority processes, and help make land suitable for housing available for development.

Notably, one part of the More Home Built Faster Act, 2022 which came into effect upon
Royal Assent were changes to Section 28.0.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act, which
include provisions to require a conservation authority to issue a permission or permit where
a Minister’s Zoning Order has been made under section 47 of the Planning Act. This
section was amended to also apply to orders made under section 34.1 of the Planning Act,
otherwise known as the “community infrastructure and housing accelerator” tool, in
addition to some other minor changes.

Other changes, which will come into effect on January 1, 2023, include:

15



e Updates to Section 21 of the Act so that a disposition of land in respect of which the
Minister has made a grant under section 39 requires authorities to provide a notice
of the proposed disposition to the Minister instead of requiring the Minister’s
approval. Authorities will also be required to conduct public consultations before
disposing of lands that meet certain criteria.

e Sections 21.1.1 and 21.1.2 of the Act which provide that authorities may not provide
a program or service related to reviewing and commenting on proposals,
applications, or other matters under prescribed Acts.

e A new section 21.3 that enables the Minister to issue temporary direction to a
conservation authority preventing the authority from changing the amount of a fee it
charges under subsection 21.2 (10) of the Act.

Remaining legislative changes regarding conservation authority development regulations
will not come into effect until proclaimed, following the creation of a new Minister’s
regulation with supporting regulatory details. This regulation is currently being consulted on
until December 30™ on the ERO, #019-2927: Proposed updates to the requlation of
development for the protection of people and property from natural hazards in Ontario.

New Regulatory Requirements

Following the passing of these legislative amendments, the government has proceeded
with making two regulations, both of which will come into effect on January 1, 2023.

Amendments were made to Ontario Requlation 686/21: Mandatory Programs and Services
to require conservation authorities to identify conservation authority lands suitable for
housing. This requirement is part of the preparation of the land inventory required to be
completed by conservation authorities by December 31, 2024, and certain considerations
for identifying whether or not lands are suitable for housing are listed.

A new Minister’s regulation (Ontario Regulation 596/22: Prescribed Acts — Subsections
21.1.1 (1.1) and 21.1.2 (1.1) of the Act) was also made to focus conservation authorities’
role when reviewing and commenting on proposals, applications, or other matters related
to development and land use planning. Under this regulation, conservation authorities are
no longer able to provide a municipal (Category 2) or other (Category 3) program or
service related to reviewing and commenting on a proposal, application, or other matter
made under the following Acts:

e The Aggregate Resources Act e The Niagara Escarpment Planning
e The Condominium Act, 1998 and Development Act

e The Drainage Act e The Ontario Heritage Act

e The Endangered Species Act, 2007 e The Ontario Water Resources Act
e The Environmental Assessment Act e The Planning Act

e The Environmental Protection Act

16


https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-2927
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-2927
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/210686#BK8

This regulation does not affect conservation authorities’ provision of mandatory
programs or services (Category 1) related to reviewing and commenting on a proposal,
application, or other matter made under those Acts.

An administrative update to the “Determination of Amounts Owing Under Subsection
27.2 (2) of the Act” regulation (O. Reg. 401/22) was also made to update the methods of
determining amounts owed by specified municipalities for operating expenses and
capital costs related to mandatory the Clean Water Act, 2006 and Lake Simcoe
Protection Act, 2008 programs and services to enable use of a benefit-based
apportionment method.

| appreciate that with these most recent amendments, along with changes made over
the last number of years, this is a time of significant transition for conservation
authorities and their member municipalities. Throughout this time, conservation
authorities have continued to deliver on their important roles in protecting people and
property from natural hazards, conserving and managing lands, and drinking water
source protection.

The ongoing efforts of conservation authorities to implement these changes is
acknowledged, including initiatives led by conservation authorities and Conservation
Ontario that have contributed to the Government’s objectives of improving accountability
and transparency and supporting timely development approvals to help address
Ontario’s housing supply crisis.

If you have any questions, please reach out to the Ministry of Natural Resources and
Forestry at ca.office@ontario.ca. | look forward to working with you in the coming year.

Sincerely,
Jennifer Keyes

Director, Resources Planning and Development Policy Branch
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry

17


mailto:ca.office@ontario.ca

ey ———
Na—— Haldimand County Administration Building

Haldimand 53 Thorburn Street South
County Cayuga, ON NOA 1EO

December 20, 2022
VIA EMAIL

Chandra Sharma
CAO/Secretary-Treasurer

Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority
250 Thorold Road West, 3rd Floor
Welland, ON L3C 3W2

Dear Ms. Sharma:
RE: Council Appointments as of November 15, 2022
Please be advised that on December 12, 2022, Haldimand County Council adopted the following resolution:

THAT Councillor O’Neill and Councillor Metcalfe be appointed to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority, for a four-year term commencing at the first meeting following this appointment and expiring
immediately before the first meeting of the authority after the appointment of their replacement.

Should you require further information, please contact the undersigned at 905-318-5932, extension 6349.

Sincerely,

& &
Evelyn Eichenbaum
Manager, Clerks Division / Municipal Clerk

EE/km

www.HaldimandCounty.ca

18



'“‘ &%CQIR?FRVATION

Report To: Board of Directors

Subject: 2022 NPCA Quarterly Progress Report #3 Required for Conservation
Authorities Act Amendments: Transition Plan and Agreements (O. Reg.
687/21)

Report No: FA-49-22

Date: February 17, 2022

Recommendation:

THAT Report No. FA-49-22 RE: 2022 NPCA Quarterly Progress Report #3 Required for
Conservation Authorities Act Amendments: Transition Plan and Agreements (O. Reg. 687/21) BE
RECEIVED.

Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to update the Board of Directors on the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority’s (NPCA) third quarterly progress report under Ontario Regulation 687/21 submitted to the
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF).

Background:

On October 7, 2021, Ontario Regulation 687/21: Transition Plans and Agreements for Programs and
Services Under Section 21.1.2 of the Conservation Authorities Act was passed requiring
Conservation Authorities to submit quarterly progress reports, formerly to the Ministry of
Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP), and now to the MNRF. The first such report was
submitted to MECP in July, 2022 and provided to the Board within Report FA-30-2022 RE:
Conservation Authorities Act Transition Quarterly Progress Report Ontario Regulation 687/21:
Transition Plan and Agreements for Programs and Services.

The NPCA'’s second progress report was submitted to the MNRF to meet the October, 2022 quarterly
deadline outlining the consultation steps that have been undertaken to date with the NPCA'’s three
participating municipalities, the City of Hamilton, Haldimand County and the Regional Municipality
of Niagara as well as additional consultations with NPCA'’s local municipalities.

Discussion:
Additional quarterly reports are required with the third report for the period ending December 31,

2022 attached as Appendix 1. Four additional reports are required in 2023. A final Conservation
Authority report will be due January 31, 2024.

Report No. FA-49-22

2022 NPCA Quarterly Progress Report #2 Required for Conservation Authorities Act Amendments:
Transition Plan and Agreements (O. Reg. 687/21)

Page 1 of 2

19



Financial Implications:

Financial implications of Conservation Authorities Act changes and transition requirements in 2022
have been addressed through internal efficiencies, existing staff resources, and Board approved
reserve funding. Additional work for Transition requirement in 2023 has been addressed in NPCA'’s
2023 Budget.

Related Reports and Appendices:

Appendix 1:  Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority (NPCA) Quarterly Progress Report #3

Authored and Submitted by:

Original Signed by:

Chandra Sharma, MCIP, RPP
Chief Administrative Officer/Secretary-Treasurer

Report No. FA-49-22

2022 NPCA Quarterly Progress Report #2 Required for Conservation Authorities Act Amendments:
Transition Plan and Agreements (O. Reg. 687/21)

Page 2 of 2

20



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-49-22
" Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority (NPCA)

Quarterly Progress Report 3

As required for Conservation Authorities Act Amendments: Transition Plan and
Agreements Regulation (O.Reg. 687/21)

Submitted To:

Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks
(MECP)

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
(MNRF)

December 31, 2022

21


APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-49-22


NPCA Transition Plan Deliverables for the Period Ending December 31, 2022

Background:

The NPCA Transition Plan and Inventory of Programs and Services was submitted to the
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP), the City of Hamilton,
Haldimand County, and Niagara Region as per MECP timelines. The NPCA met with
participating and partner local municipalities between March and November of 2022 to
provide an update on the Conservation Authorities Act requirements and the Inventory of
Programs and Services. Few updates were made based on municipal input. The passage of
Bill 23 - More Homes Built Faster Act has impacted the ongoing progress with municipal
partners on MOU discussions.

Memorandum of Understanding:

A draft MOU template was developed and shared with some municipalities for review in
Quarter 4 of 2022. However, at this time we anticipate delays due to the passage of Bill 23.
The repercussions from Bill 23 may drastically affect the NPCA’s ability to complete the
agreements within the required timeframe.

Levy Regulation and Budget Transition:

The NPCA has completed the first round of budget transition based on levy regulations and
much earlier than required by the Ministry deadline. Transition to the new budget/levy
model is being partially executed for the 2023 budget cycle instead of 2024.

Difficulty and Challenges related to Transition Timelines:

As mentioned above, Bill 23 has created a significant workload for the NPCA and
municipalities and uncertainty with respect to Category 2 and 3 programs and services. The
NPCA is currently in discussions with some municipalities to understand the implication of
Bill 23 on collaborative work. Furthermore, the multiple provisions related to municipalities
have impacted any ongoing progress as municipalities are trying to understand the impacts
of various provisions on their own business.

Further updates will be provided in future Progress Reports.

22



‘ Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION

Report To: Board of Directors

Subject: Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Report No: FA-01-23

Date: February 17, 2023

Recommendation:
1. THAT Report No. FA-01-23 RE: Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule BE RECEIVED.

2. THAT Appendices 1 and 2 to Report No. FA-01-23 RE: Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
BE APPROVED.

3. AND THAT the meeting schedule BE MADE available on the NPCA website and PROVIDED to the
participating and local area municipalities.

Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to establish the NPCA Board of Directors’ 2023 meeting schedule for
internal business planning purposes and public awareness, accessibility and transparency.

Background:

The Administrative By-law provides that the calendar of regular Board meetings for the year is approved
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

The schedules attached as both Appendix 1 and 2 maintain the practice originally established in 2021
for convening Board meetings at 9:30 a.m. on the third Friday of the month. In 2023, it is again proposed
that the Board forego meeting in the months of August and December.

Discussion:

The regular March Board meeting is moved from the third Friday of the month to the fourth Friday, being
March 24, 2023 to avoid conflict with the March Break. Efforts were made to give regard to meeting
schedules of the local and participating municipalities but occasional conflicts may exist with individual
Members’ other meeting commitments.

Report No. FA-01-23
Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Page 1 of 4

23



Financial Implications:

There are no new or additional financial implications posed by adoption of the Board of Directors’ 2023
Meeting Schedule as presented.

Links to Policy/Strategic Plan:

Approving and publicizing the Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule supports the Strategic Plan’s
Goal to ensure “Organizational Excellence” by “providing high standards of customer service” and
“improving internal operations and processes.”

Related Reports and Appendices:

Appendix 1: NPCA Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Appendix 2: NPCA Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Calendar

Authored by:

Original Signed by:

Grant Bivol
NPCA Clerk

Submitted by:

Original Signed by:

Chandra Sharma, MCIP, RPP
Chief Administrative Officer / Secretary-Treasurer

Report No. FA-01-23
Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Page 2 of 4

24



Appendix 1 to Report No. FA-01-23

NPCA Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule

Full Authority Board Meetings (9:30 a.m.): Friday, March 24
Friday, April 21
Friday, May 19
Friday, June 16
Friday, July 21
Friday, September 15
Friday, October 20
Friday, November 17

There will be an additional Source Protection Authority Board meetings scheduled for the Fall of 2023
to co-incide with a regular Full Authority Board meeting.

Committee Meetings:

Finance Committee (9:30 a.m.): Wednesday, April 5
Wednesday, July 26
Wednesday, October 25

Governance Committee (9:30 a.m.): Thursday, April 13
Thursday, June 8
Thursday, September 7

Public Advisory Committee: To Be Determined

Wainfleet Bog Advisory Committee: To Be Determined

Report No. FA-01-23
Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Page 3 of 4

25



APPENDIX 2 to Report No. FA-01-2023
NPCA BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING CALENDAR

2023
I

S M| T |W|T F S S M| T | W F

1 2 3 4 1 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11
12 |13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 12 113 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18
19 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 19 1 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25
26 H 28 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31

L Apil May

sim|T|w|[T|F]|S sim|T|Ww|T|F]|Ss s|im|T|w|T|F]|Ss
1 1 12]3]4]5]6 1121 3

23456 M 8 7 18] 9 [10]11]|12]13 4156|789/ 10
o BN 11| 12[13] 1415 14 | 15 [ 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 11 1213|1415 [ 16 | 17
16 |17 |18 |19 | 20 | 21 | 22 21 23 |24 | 25 | 26 | 27 1819 |20 | 21 [ 22 23 | 24
23 |24 | 25|26 | 27 | 28 | 29 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30

30

| August
sim|T|w|T]|F|S sim|T|w|T|F|S sim|T|w|T|F|Ss

1 11213 4]s 1| 2
2 Bl 4+ [s5]6[7]s 6 I 8 [o[1n0]11]12 sl 5 |6 [7]8]0o
9 [ 1011 ] 12]13]14]15 13 |14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 1011|1213 ] 14|15 16
16 |17 | 18 |19 | 20 | 21 | 22 20| 21 [ 22 23|24 [ 25 | 26 17 |18 [ 19 |20 | 21 | 22 | 23
23 | 24 | 25 [ 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 24 | 25 [ 26 [ 27 | 28 [JER] 30
30 | 31
October November December
sImM|T|w|T|F]|Ss s|ImMm|T|w F s|im|T|w|T|F
1123456 ]7 11 23] 4 1] 2
s B 011 [12]13] 14 5 |6 78] o [l 34|56 |7]8]09
15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 1213 [ 14 | 15 16 | 17 | 18 10 | 11 [ 12 | 13 | 14 [15+] 16
22 |23 ] 24 [ 25| 26 | 27 | 28 19 |20 | 21 [ 22 23 | 24 | 25 17 |18 |19 | 20 [ 21 [ 22 | 23
29 | 30 | 31 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 24 m@
31

**December 15 Board Meeting - Optional
[CJFull Authority Board Meeting [[_]Governance Meeting
[llstatutory Holiday / Office Closure  [[_JMarch Break

[JFinance Meeting

Report No. FA-01-23

Board of Directors’ 2023 Meeting Schedule
Page 4 of 4



‘ Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION

Report To: Board of Directors
Subject: Updated Administrative By-Law
Report No: FA-02-23

Date: February 17, 2023

Recommendation:
1. THAT Report No. FA-02-23 RE: Updated Administrative By-Law BE RECEIVED.

2. THAT the NPCA Administrative By-Law dated October 22, 2021 and amending By-law No. 01-
2021 BE REPEALED.

3. THAT the Administrative By-Law attached hereto as Appendix 1 to Report FA-02-23 BE READ
a first and second time and finally ADOPTED this 17" day of February, 2023.

4. THAT the Terms of Reference for the Public Advisory Committee, once approved by the Board,
BE ATTACHED to the Administrative By-law in Appendix 5 and BE DEEMED thereafter to form
a part of said by-law.

5. THAT the Terms of Reference for the Wainfleet Bog Advisory Committee BE REFERRED to
staff for review and subsequent report back to the Board.

Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to seek Board adoption of the revised Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority (NPCA) Administrative By-Law inclusive of previously approved updates, and with
revisions proposed by Conservation Ontario to comply with legislative changes enacted by the
province through Bill 23, More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 which received Royal Assent on
November 28, 2022.

Background:

The NPCA Administrative By-Law is based on the model by-law provided by Conservation Ontario
which has been widely adopted by most other Conservation Authorities in the Province of Ontario.
During the past term, the NPCA Board of Directors enacted changes to its Administrative By-Law to
reflect legislative changes and to better align with the governance structure of the NPCA. The most
recent additions came via amending By-Law No. 01-21 in December of 2021.

Discussion:

Report No. FA-02-23
Updated Administrative By-Law

P 1 of
27 age 1 of 3



The current draft Administrative By-Law before the Board (attached hereto as Appendix 1 to this
report) is a consolidation with a previously enacted amending by-law but moreover includes those
additional amendments stemming from Conservation Ontario’s review of the new legislation in Bill
23 and subsequent update to its own model by-law. The amendments to reflect the most recent
legislative changes are highlighted in the attached draft Administrative By-Law in Appendix 1. Also
highlighted are some clerical updates and two other noteworthy changes as follows to reflect the
new Board size:

e A reduction in the minimum requirement to three (3) Board Member appointments from five
(5) on both the Finance and Governance Committees (with the Chair and Vice Chair
remaining ex-officio);

e A adjustment of wording such that the Chair and Vice Chair designation as Ex-Officio
members to a Committee be specifically stipulated within the Terms of Reference of each
Committee. (This eliminates the Chair and Vice Chair's membership in the Wainfleet Bog
Advisory Committee and will the Public Advisory Committee).

Finally, with the reduction in the size of the Board, it is necessary to review the citizen advisory
committees’ composition and structure. The Terms of Reference for the Public Advisory Committee
have been reviewed and are presented in a subsequent report on February 17, 2023 for adoption
by the Board of Directors and inclusion in the Administrative By-Law. The Terms of Reference for

the Wainfleet Bog Advisory Committee will be reviewed by staff and presented for approval of the
Board in the spring of 2023.

Financial Implications:

A reduction in Committee size and participation would allow modest savings in Board per diems and
mileage charges.

Links to Policy/Strategic Plan:
Adoption of a revised Administrative By-Law aligns with Strategic Priority 5 in the Strategic Plan as

it promotes “organizational excellence” and “striving for high service delivery standards and
accountability to the environment and its people”.

Related Reports and Appendices:

Appendix 1: Draft Administrative By-Law

Authored by:

Original Signed by:

Grant Bivol,
NPCA Clerk

Report No. FA-02-23
Updated Administrative By-Law
Page 2 of 3

28



Submitted by:

Original Signed by:

Chandra Sharma, MCIP, RPP
Chief Administrative Officer / Secretary-Treasurer

Report No. FA-02-23
Updated Administrative By-Law
Page 3 of 3

29



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

Niagara Peninsula
CONSERVATION

Y

Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority

Administrative By-law

30



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

. Background

Amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act

The Conservation Authorities Act, as amended by the Building Better Communities and
Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017, and Bill 108, More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019
provides direction for conservation authorities to make such by-laws as are required for its
proper administration. These bylaws replaced administrative regulations created under the
repealed Section 30 of the Conservation Authorities Act.

Section 19.1 of the Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 sets
out the requirements for by-laws as follows:

By-laws
19.1 (1) An authority may make by-laws,

2|Page

(a) respecting the meetings to be held by the authority, including providing for the calling of the
meetings and the procedures to be followed at meetings, specifying which meetings, if any,
may be closed to the public;

(b) prescribing the powers and duties of the secretary-treasurer;

(c) designating and empowering officers to sign contracts, agreements and other documents
on behalf of the authority;

(d) delegating all or any of its powers to the executive committee except,
(i) the termination of the services of the secretary-treasurer,
(ii) the power to raise money, and

(iii) the power to enter into contracts or agreements other than those contracts or
agreements as are necessarily incidental to the works approved by the authority;

(e) providing for the composition of its executive committee and for the establishment of other
committees that it considers advisable and respecting any other matters relating to its
governance;

(f) respecting the roles and responsibilities of the members of the authority and of its officers
and senior staff;

(g) requiring accountability and transparency in the administration of the authority including,

(i) providing for the retention of records specified in the by-laws and for making the
records available to the public,

(i) establishing a code of conduct for the members of the authority, and
(iii) adopting conflict of interest guidelines for the members of the authority;

(h) respecting the management of the authority’s financial affairs, including auditing and
reporting on the authority’s finances;

(i) respecting the by-law review required under subsection (3) and providing for the frequency
of the reviews; and

KY|



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

(j) respecting such other matters as may be prescribed by regulation.

Conflict with other laws

(2) If a by-law made by an authority conflicts with any provision of the Municipal Conflict of Interest
Act or the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Actor a provision of a
regulation made under one of those Acts, the provision of the Act or regulation prevails.

Periodic review of by-laws

(3) At such regular intervals as may be determined by by-law, an authority shall undertake a review
of all of its by-laws to ensure, amongst other things, that the by-laws are in compliance with any Act
referred to in subsection (2) or any other relevant law.

By-laws available to public
(4) An authority shall make its by-laws available to the public in the manner it considers appropriate.

Transition
(5) An authority shall make such by-laws under this section as are required for its proper
administration,

(a) in the case of an authority that was established on or before the day section 16 of Schedule
4 to the Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 comes into
force, within one year of that day; and

(b) in the case of an authority that is established after the day section 16 of Schedule 4 to
the Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 comes into force,
within one year of the day the authority is established.

Same
(6) Despite the repeal of section 30 by section 28 of Schedule 4 to the Building Better Communities
and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017, a regulation that was made by an authority under that section
continues in force after the repeal until the earlier of,
(a) the day that is one year after the day section 16 of Schedule 4 to the Building Better
Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 comes into force; and
(b) the day the regulation is revoked by the authority.

Direction by Minister

(7) The Minister may give an authority a written direction to make or amend a by-law on any matter
described in subsection (1), in accordance with the direction, within such period of time as may be
specified in the direction.

Compliance
(8) The authority that receives a direction under subsection (7) shall comply with the direction within
the time specified in the direction.

Regulation where failure to comply

(9) If an authority fails to adopt a by-law in accordance with the direction made under subsection (7),
the Minister may make regulations in relation to the matters set out in the direction that are applicable
in the area of jurisdiction of the authority.

Same

(10) Any regulation made by the Minister under subsection (9) prevails over any conflicting by-law

that the authority may have adopted.

3|Page

32



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

1. NPCA Administrative By-Law

Introduction

A Conservation Authority is a non-share corporation, established under Section 3 of the
Conservation Authorities Act (the Act), with the objects to provide, in the area over which
it has jurisdiction, programs and services designed for the purpose of furthering the
conservation, restoration, development and management of natural resources in
watershed(s) other than gas, coal and minerals.

Under the Act, municipalities within a common watershed are enabled to petition the
province to establish a conservation authority. Members of the Authority are appointed as
representatives by the Participating Municipalities and are effectively directors also of the
Authority. (The Regional Municipality of Niagara, The City of Hamilton, The Corporation of
Haldimand County). An additional member may be appointed to the authority by the Minister
as a representative of the agricultural sector.

NPCA Mandate

As prescribed by the Conservation Authorities Act, Section 20 outlines the objects of the
Authority:

To establish and undertake programs and services, on a watershed basis, to further the
conservation, restoration, development, and management of natural resources; and

Bill 108 prescribes Provincial Regulations to list specific programs and services that are
considered core mandate by the province. Further, Schedule 2 of Bill 108:

Imposes on every member of an authority to act honestly and in good faith with a view to
furthering the objects of the authority.

A. Definitions
“Act” means the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.0. 1990, chapter C.27
“Authority” means the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority

“Board Members” means the appointed members to the Authority by the participating
municipalities (Niagara Region, City of Hamilton, Haldimand County) within the watershed.

“Call of the Chair” shall mean the Chairperson of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation

Authority will make the decision to have a meeting and will inform the Chief Administrative
Officer/Secretary-Treasurer or designate and that person will ensure action if it is necessary.

“Chair” shall mean the Chairperson as elected by the Board Members of the Niagara
Peninsula Conservation Authority.

“CAO/Secretary Treasurer” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Authority which
includes the responsibilities of the Secretary Treasurer.

4|Page

33



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

“Ex-Officio” means that, by virtue of the office, if so designated within terms of reference for
a Committee, the Chair and Vice Chair may participate in the discussion, but cannot account
for quorum, move or second a motion or partake in the decision or vote.
“Fiscal Year” means the period from January 1 through December 31.

“General Membership” means all of the Members, collectively and effectively acting as
directors as specified in the Ontario Not-For-Profit Corporations Act (ONCA).

“Inaugural Meeting” shall be an annual meeting to complete past year’s business; for
annual elections and appointments; and to start current year’s business.

“Majority” means half of the votes plus one.

“Members” shall mean the members appointed to the Authority by the participating
municipalities in the Authority’s area of jurisdiction and effectively act as directors as specified
in the Ontario Not-For-Profit Corporations Act (ONCA).

“Officer” means an officer of the Authority as empowered to sign contracts, agreements and
other documents on behalf of the Authority in accordance with section 19.1 of the Act, which
shall include the Chair, Vice-Chair(s) the Chief Administrative Officer and the Secretary-
Treasurer (or the CAO/Secretary-Treasurer, if applicable).

“NPCA” means the “Authority” or the “Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority”.

“Participating Municipality” means a municipality that is designated by or under the Act as
a participating municipality in a conservation authority.

“Per Diem” is the daily rate established by the board that applies to the Chair, Vice-Chair and
Board Members for service to the Authority in attendance at Authority Board meetings and
Standing Committee meetings as previously approved by the board.

“Pecuniary Interest” includes the financial or material interests of a member and the financial
or material interests of a member of the member’s immediate family.

“Staff” shall mean staff members employed at the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority.

“Vice-Chair” shall mean the Vice-Chairperson as elected by the Board Members of the
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority.

“Weighted Majority” means the votes of 51 per cent of those represented after the votes are
weighted by the percentage that applies under Ontario Regulation 139/96 for Municipal Levies.

5|Page

34



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

B. Governance

1.

1.1

Board Members

Appointments
Participating municipalities within the jurisdiction of the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority may appoint Board Members in accordance with Section 14
of the Act. Members must reside in a Participating Municipality within the Authority’s
area of jurisdiction.

Participating municipalities must ensure that at least 70 percent of its appointees are
selected from among the members of the municipal council or apply to the Minister
for permission to appoint less than this percent. Additional appointees may include
citizens as well as an additional member who may be appointed by the Minister as a
representative of the agricultural sector. The Minister will define the term for the
Member they appoint as a representative of the agricultural sector.

Collectively, the appointed Members for the purposes of this by-law are also referred
to as the General Membership.

1.2 Term of Board Member Appointments

1.3

2,

21

6|Page

In accordance with Section 14 of the Act, a Board Member shall be appointed for a
term of up to four years at the discretion of the appointing municipal council; such
term beginning at the first meeting of the Authority following his or her appointment
and ending immediately before the first meeting of the Authority following the
appointment of his or her replacement. The C.A.O/Secretary-Treasurer shall notify
the appropriate municipality in advance of the expiration date of any Board Member’s
term, unless notified by the municipality of the Board Member’s reappointment or the
appointment of his or her replacement. A Board Member is eligible for reappointment.
A Board Member can be replaced by a Participating Municipality at the municipality’s
discretion prior to the end of their term.”

The Board Members shall approve all governance policies of the Niagara
Peninsula Conservation Authority including strategic and business plans, approve
the budget, approve the annual audit, give direction on priority of programs and

projects and approve other matters as required by the Conservation Authorities Act
and Regulations (see Section 2.2 below for further details).

Mandatory Responsibilities of Board Members
Bound by Conservation Authorities Act

The Niagara Peninsula Conservation Board is bound by the Conservation
Authorities Act, where:

Section 20 of the Conservation Authorities Act defines the mandate of a
Conservation Authority as follows:

“The objects of an authority are to provide, in an area over which it has jurisdiction,

35



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

7|Page

programs and services designed to further the conservation, restoration
development and management of natural resources other than gas, oil, coal and
minerals”

Section 21(1) of the Conservation Authorities Act, as amended by Bill 108 outlines
programs and services to accomplish its objects, as follows

(a) to research, study and investigate the watershed and to support the development
and implementation of programs and services intended to further the purposes of this
Act;

(b) for any purpose necessary to any project under consideration or undertaken by
the authority, to enter into and upon any land and survey and take levels of it and
make such borings or sink such trial pits as the authority considers necessary;

(c) to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise any land that it may require, and,
subject to subsections (2) and (4), to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of land so
acquired;

(d) despite subsection (2), to lease for a term of five years or less land acquired by
the authority;

(e) to purchase or acquire any personal property that it may require and sell or
otherwise deal therewith;

(f) to enter into agreements for the purchase of materials, employment of labour and
other purposes as may be necessary for the due carrying out of any project or to
further the authority’s objects;

(g) to enter into agreements with owners of private lands to facilitate the due carrying
out of any project;

(h) to determine the proportion of the total benefit afforded to all the participating
municipalities that is afforded to each of them;

(i) to erect works and structures and create reservoirs by the construction of dams
or otherwise;

(j) to control the flow of surface waters in order to prevent floods or pollution or to
reduce the adverse effects thereof;

(k) to alter the course of any river, canal, brook, stream or watercourse, and divert
or alter, as well temporarily as permanently, the course of any river, stream, road,
street or way, or raise or sink its level in order to carry it over or under, on the level
of or by the side of any work built or to be built by the authority, and to divert or alter
the position of any water-pipe, gas-pipe, sewer, drain or any telegraph, telephone
or electric wire or pole;

() to use lands that are owned or controlled by the authority for purposes, not
inconsistent with its objects, as it considers proper;

36



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

2.2

8|Page

(m) to use lands owned or controlled by the authority for park or other recreational
purposes, and to erect, or permit to be erected, buildings, booths and facilities for
such purposes and to make charges for admission thereto and the use thereof;

(n) to collaborate and enter into agreements with ministries and agencies of
government, municipal councils and local boards and other organizations and
individuals;

(o) to plant and produce trees on Crown lands with the consent of the Minister, and
on other lands with the consent of the owner, for any purpose;

(p) to cause research to be done;

(q) generally, to do all such acts as are necessary for the due carrying out of any
project or as may be desirable to further the objects of the authority.

Functions of the Board

In addition to the procedures in this policy and subject to the Conservation Authorities
Act, the Authority shall:

- Approve the auditor’s statement for the preceding year — if the statement is
not approved, the amended statement shall be reintroduced for approval at
the next appropriate meeting;

- Pass a borrowing resolution for a specified amount for the purposes of the
Authority and authorizing the appointed signing officers to sign notes as
required to implement this borrowing;

- Approve a budget for the Authority for the ensuing year;
- Approve the levies to be paid by Municipalities;
- Supervise the activities of any Standing/Ad Hoc Committees and accept or

reject any of their recommendations;

- Receive delegations on behalf of the Authority;

- Consider requests for grants from groups outside the Authority;

- Decide and recommend policies not covered in these resolutions;
- Update as required policies of the Authority.

Every member and officer in exercising his or her powers and discharging his or her
duties to the Authority shall act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Authority and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably
prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

All Board Members are public officials and thus have the responsibility to be guided

37



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

2.3

2.4

2.5

9|Page

by and adhere to the rules of conduct (Refer to Appendix 1 - Code of Conduct), explicit
and implied, for all such holders of public office in the Province of Ontario.

Additionally, the agricultural representative appointed by the Minister will be required
to follow the provincial ethical framework set out for government public appointees in
the Management Board of Cabinet’'s Agencies and Appointments Directive.

Members are responsible for:

i. Attending all meetings of the Authority;

ii. Understanding the purpose, function and responsibilities of the Authority;
iii. Being familiar with the Authority’s statutory and other legal obligations;
iv.  With the administration, setting strategic direction for the Authority.

In addition, all Board Members must adhere to all applicable acts of incorporation. If
any part of this by-law conflicts with any provision of the Municipal Conflict of Interest
Act or the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act or a
provision of a regulation made under one of those acts, the provision of that act or
regulation prevails. The same applies to conflicts between these by-laws and the Not-
for-Profit Corporations Act except where dictated by the Conservation Authorities Act
in which case the Act prevails.

Ensuring Fiscal Stability of Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority

The Board Members must ensure the financial stability of the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority. While the CAO/Secretary-Treasurer provides day-to-day
leadership in fiscal affairs, the Board bears the ultimate responsibility for financial
soundness. This includes approving an annual budget, receiving and approving
reports on financial performance of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority,
ensuring policies are in place for financial soundness and approving the annual
audit.

Relationship between Board Members and CAO/Secretary-Treasurer

The Board relies on the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer to inspire, lead and manage the
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority. The Board will forge a strong partnership
with the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer, working cooperatively to achieve the mandate,
mission and vision of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority. The Board
regularly evaluates, at least annually, the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer, measuring
his/her performance against the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority’s
strategic plan and financial and human resources goals of the organization.

Relationship between Board Members and NPCA Staff

The Board Members must act as a team and represent the interests of the entire
watershed. A strong partnership must be forged between the Board and the CAO /
Secretary-Treasurer. The Board allows the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer to manage
the organization and its staff. The following parameters are to be followed throughout
the organization and by the public at large:

- If a Board Member has questions on a project or report, such questions
shall be referred through the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer for him/her to invite

38



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

10| Page

the appropriate Department head to explain the project and answer
questions.

- If a Board Member would like to volunteer to assist in a project, such actions
shall be taken for review and consultation with the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer
and decided upon by the C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer.

- If a Board Member receives a complaint about a staff person or would like
to acknowledge a staff person, such information shall go through the CAO /
Secretary-Treasurer.

- If a Board Member receives a complaint from a staff person, the Board
Member shall advise the staff person to follow the appropriate procedure as
outlined in the personnel policy.

With respect to staffing issues, the following outlines the responsibilities of the Board
Members and the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer:

The Board is solely responsible for the following:

- Recruiting the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer;
- Hiring the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer; and
- Dismissing the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer.

The Board’s Chair and Vice-Chair are responsible for:

- Evaluating the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer and providing recommendations to
the Board; and
- Recommending the annual salary and pay for performance of the CAO /

Secretary-Treasurer for consideration to the Board Members.

The Board and the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer share the following responsibilities in
that the recommendation will come from the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer and the
approval will come from the Board:

- Setting key commitments and deliverables for the CAO / Secretary-
Treasurer;

- Setting human resource and personnel policies which will have a dollar
impact upon the budget; and

- Setting staff salary schedules and plans as part of the annual budget review
process.

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer is solely responsible for the following:

- Assessing staffing requirements;

- Recruiting, hiring and dismissing staff (recruiting and dismissing senior staff
should be done in consultation with the Board of Directors);

- Providing staff direction;

- Approving staff evaluations;

- Implementing salary schedule and salary plan as approved by the Board of
Directors;

- Designing the organizational structure; and

- Recommending human resource and personnel policies, to the Board of

Directors for approval.

39



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

3.

3.1

3.2

11|Page

Duties of Officers

Chair of the Board

Oversees Board meetings and ensures the Administrative By-Law is
adhered to;

Serves as ex-officio, non-voting member of a committee if so specified in the
applicable Terms of Reference;

Works in partnership with the CAQO / Secretary-Treasurer to ensure Board
resolutions are carried out;

Assists the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer in preparing agendas for Board
meetings where required;

Calls special meetings if necessary;
Periodically consults with Board Members on their roles;

Acts as a public spokesperson for the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority to facilitate the mandate, mission and vision of the organization;

Represents the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority at such functions as
warrant the interest of the Authority except where this responsibility is
specifically assigned to some other person;

Inspires other Board Members with his or her own commitment of support,
time and enthusiasm;

Represents the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority at Conservation
Ontario Council meetings;

Serves as signing officer for the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority;

Performs other duties when directed to do so by resolution of the Niagara
Peninsula Conservation Authority;

Keeps the Board Members apprised of significant issues in a timely fashion;
Serves as an Authority appointee to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation

Foundation and/or appoints a Board Member to represent him or her on
their behalf.

Vice-Chair of the Board

Attends all Board meetings;
Carries out special assignments as requested by the Chair of the Board;
Understands the responsibilities of the Board Chair and acts as Chair

immediately upon the death, incapacity to act, absence or resignation of the
Chair until such time as a new Chair is appointed or until the Chair resumes

40



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

3.3

12| Page

his/her duties;

Serves as an alternate signing officer for the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority;

Serves as ex-officio, non-voting member of a committee if so specified in the
applicable Terms of Reference;

Keeps the Board Members apprised of significant issues in a timely fashion;

Serves as alternate to Chair at Conservation Ontario Council Meetings.

CAO / Secretary-Treasurer

Attends all Board meetings;

Acts as Secretary-Treasurer of the Board in accordance with the
Conservation Authorities Act;

Serves as a signing officer for the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority;

Keeps the Chair and Vice-Chair apprised of significant issues in a timely
fashion;

Develops, for Board approval, and implements both short and long-term
strategic plans in accordance with business goals and objectives;

Tends to the day-to-day requirements, details and management of the
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority;

Manages staff and programs of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority;

Makes certain that appropriate actions are taken in a timely fashion;
Works in close collaboration with the Chair and Vice-Chair;
Implements all Board resolutions in a timely fashion;

Ensures Board policies and strategic plan are adhered to;

Manages the financial activities of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority;

Makes recommendations to the Board regarding suggested policy changes;
Acts as public spokesperson for Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority;

Represents the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority at Conservation
Ontario, Board, Committees and Task Force meetings;

41



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

4.

41.

4.2

4.3

13| Page

- Negotiates and enters into contracts, as approved by the Board, with
external agencies/partners to carry out the goals of the organization in
accordance with approved Policy;

- Develops and maintains effective relationships and ensures good
communications with watershed municipalities, federal and provincial
government  ministries/agencies, other  Conservation  Authorities,
Conservation Ontario and community groups and associations;

- Serves as an Authority representative on the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Foundation.

- Develops an education / orientation program designed to inform Board
Members of their roles and responsibilities with respect to the Code of
Conduct. The CAO will ensure Board Members are made fully aware of the
roles and responsibilities with respect to various applicable legislation and
regulations as well as that contained in the Code of Conduct (Appendix 1)
through an education/orientation program. Each Board Member is required
to sign an Acknowledgement Form as part of their orientation program.

Advisory and Standing Committees:

In accordance with Section 18(2) of the Act, the Authority shall establish such advisory
boards as required by regulation and may establish such other advisory boards or
committees as it considers appropriate to study and report on specific matters.

The General Membership shall approve the terms of reference for all such advisory
boards and committees, which shall include the role, the frequency of meetings and
the number of members required.

Resolutions and policies governing the operation of the Authority shall be observed
in all advisory board and committee meetings.

Each advisory board or committee shall report to the General Membership, presenting
any recommendations made by the advisory board or committee.

The dates of all advisory board and committee meetings shall be made available to
all Members of the Authority.

Current Standing Committees are:

- Finance Committee
- Governance Committee

Current Advisory Committees are:
- Public Advisory Committee
- Wainfleet Bog Advisory Committee.

The Authority may strike a standing or advisory committee to investigate and make
recommendations on matters of interest to the Authority.

Any standing committee of the Authority will be recognized as a functioning

committee until the Authority replaces or dissolves that committee or until December
31 of the year in which the committee is formed.

42



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

4.11

5.

14| Page

The Authority will strike standing committees at the first business meeting of the
year or at other times as may be desired.

Notwithstanding a NPCA Advisory Committee Terms of Reference, any standing
committee of the Authority will be comprised at a minimum of three members, and if
so deemed applicable the Chair and the Vice-Chair of the Authority who serve as
ex-officio, non-voting members. All members of the Board may attend Standing
Committee meetings and comment and participate, however, only committee
members may vote at committee.

Each standing and advisory committee will have a Terms of Reference established
by the Authority and affixed within Appendix 5 of the Administrative By-Law to form a
part of said by-law. The Terms of Reference will serve as a consistent guide to
committee members and provide a continuity of understanding by the Authority
as to the specific purpose for the standing committee. The Terms of Reference may
be altered by the Authority where the scope of a standing committee’s mandate
is either altered or changed.

When a new standing committee is proposed, either the Authority Board Member
proposing the new standing committee will present Terms of Reference for Authority
approval, or the Authority will cause such Terms of Reference to be prepared. In
either case, a new standing committee shall not be struck until the Authority
approves Terms of Reference for the standing committee.

Authority standing and advisory committees will be comprised of Authority Board
Members save and except the Public Advisory Committee and the Wainfleet
Bog Advisory Committee which shall include members of the public appointed
in accordance with the Terms of Reference for said committee. Other than the
Source Water Protection Committee, the Board Members may invite people to
participate as a committee member and/or attend committee meetings as a
resource.

The Code of Conduct applies to Members of the NPCA Board of Directors and public
appointees to Committees. The agricultural representative appointed by the Minister
will be required to follow the provincial ethical framework set out for government public
appointees in the Management Board of Cabinet's Agencies and Appointments
Directive.

Only committee members are entitled to vote on matters coming before the
committee.

Standing and advisory Committees make recommendations only to the Board,
where in turn, recommendations are considered for approval.

Where any member of the Authority or Committee is acting in the place of the Chair
or the Committee Chair, as the case may be, such member shall have and may
exercise all the rights and powers of the Chair or the Committee Chair of the
Standing Committee as the case may be, while so acting.

Honourariums, Per Diems, Expenses and Mileage

43



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.3.1

The per diem rate is the daily rate established by the Board that applies to the Chair,
Vice-Chair and Board Members for service to the Authority in attendance at Authority
Board Meetings, Standing Committee meetings, Source Protection Authority
meetings or other such meetings as previously approved by the Board or Chair. A per
diem rate shall be applied no more than once per day.

The honourarium is the annual rate established by the Board that applies to the Chair
and Vice-Chair for additional duties performed as they relate to the business of the
Authority.

The Authority shall review the per diem rates and honourariums for Members and
Chair/Vice-Chair as part of the Administrative By-law updates. Remuneration of the
Member appointed by the Minister as a representative of the agricultural sector is at
the expense and discretion of the Province.

A per diem allowance shall be applicable for:

a) Attendance as a member at Full Authority Board meetings, Source Protection
Authority meetings, Standing Committee meetings and Ad Hoc Committee
meetings as established by the Full Authority Board.

b) Attendance at other such business functions as may be from time to time
requested at the direction of the Chair and/or CAO / Secretary - Treasurer.

Examples may include:

i. Attendance at meetings of municipal councils to present the Authority’s Annual
Budget and General Levy requirement, if the Member does not sit on that
council and when such council presentations are scheduled through the
Chair’s office or at the request of the Full Authority Board;

ii. Attendance at meetings of working groups or committees when appointed by
the Full Authority Board to such group or committee as an “official
representative” of the Authority;

iii. Attendance at workshops, conferences or tours hosted by the Authority or
Conservation Ontario, if participation is open to all Members and registration
is made through the Chair’s office;

iv. Any other business approved as eligible for a per diem allowance by the Chair
and CAO.

5.3.2 An honourarium shall be applicable for:

5.4

15| Page

a) Administrative tasks as they relate to business of the Authority such as signing
documents, reviewing agendas, preparing correspondence etc.

b) Acting in the capacity of the Authority spokesperson for board-related matters.
The Authority will reimburse Board Members' travel expenses incurred for

the purpose of attending meetings and/or functions for which a per diem applies on
behalf of the Authority where it is not paid by another agency.

44


gbivol
Highlight


APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

16| Page

Mileages are based on the Board Member’s principal residential address in the
municipality they represent, and the rate shall be in accordance with the
established rate for the Authority.

The Authority will reimburse members for actual costs of meals, lodging,
transportation and conference fees when costs are necessarily incurred in the
conduct of Authority business as applicable under s. 5.3 in accordance with
established rates.

The Chair, Vice-Chair and Board Members will be responsible for filing claims of any
expenses, per diems and mileage incurred for other than Full Authority Board
Meetings, Source Protection Authority Meetings, or Committee meetings on a
quarterly basis or at the request of the Authority.

All Board Member per diem and expense claims will be reviewed for compliance with
the Administrative By-law by the CAO and Chair and any per diem denials will be
brought to the Governance Committee for review.

Board of Directors per diems, expenses and mileage shall be reported quarterly and
posted.

Records Retention

Such records shall be retained and protected in accordance with all applicable laws
and the Records Retention Policy of the Authority as approved by the Board of
Directors from time-to-time.

Freedom of Information

The Authority members shall be governed, at all times, by the provisions of the
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA).

In the instance where a member vacates their position on the Authority Board they
will continue to be bound by MFIPPA requirements.

Access by Design policies will promote the view that government-held information
retained by the NPCA should be routinely made available to the public, and that any
exceptions should be limited, specific and in accordance with any permissible
exemptions as outlined in MFIPPA when necessary.

The Board of Directors will adopt and support key principles and policies providing
Access by Design and Privacy by Design. Privacy by Design polices will provide the
maximum degree of privacy by ensuring that personal data is automatically protected
in any given IT system or business practice at the NPCA in full compliance with
MFIPPA, as well as the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents
Act (PIPEDA).

The Board of Directors in consultation with the CAO/Secretary - Treasurer will
appoint a staff person as Freedom of Information Co-Ordinator for the purposes of
receiving, reviewing, responding in order to comply with the Municipal Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act.

45



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

8. Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor

The Authority’s accounts and transactions will be audited annually by a person
licensed under the Public Accounting Act, 2004 and shall ensure that the annual audit
is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada.

The Board of Directors shall receive and approve the Audited Financial Statements
and Report of the Auditor annually for the previous.

The Authority shall forward copies of the Audited Financial Statements to Participating
Municipalities and the Minister in accordance with Section 38 of the Act and will make
the Audited Financial Statements available to the public on the Authority’s website
within sixty (60) days of receipt.

9. Borrowing Resolution

If required, the Board of Directors shall establish a borrowing resolution and such
resolution shall be in force until it is superseded by another borrowing resolution.

10. Levy Notice

The levy due to NPCA from participating municipalities shall be communicated to
those municipalities in accordance with the Act and any applicable Regulations.

11. Signing Officers
All deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations entered into by NPCA

shall be signed by the signing officers of NPCA, or designate, as outlined in the NPCA
policy on Signing Officer.

17 |Page

46



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

C.

1.

1.1

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

2.

18| Page

Meeting Procedures

Meetings Open to Public

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to the public. Where possible, the
Authority will provide for alternative means for the public to participate in meetings
electronically.

A meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter being
considered is identified in the closed meeting section of the Agenda or arises during
a meeting requiring that it be closed to the public at the time that the matter is raised
at a meeting, and the subject matter meets the criteria for a closed meeting as defined
in Section 10 this by-law.

Quorum

At an NPCA Board meeting, a quorum consists of one-half of the members appointed
by the participating municipalities. A Member appointed by the Minister to represent
agricultural interests is not part of quorum.

If there is no quorum within fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for the
meeting, the Chair for the meeting shall declare the meeting adjourned due to a lack
of a quorum and the recording secretary shall record the names of the members
present and absent.

Where the number of members, who by reason of the provisions of the Municipal
Conflict of Interest Act, are disabled from participating in a meeting, is such that at
the meeting the remaining members are not of sufficient number to constitute a
quorum, then the remaining number of members shall be deemed to constitute a
quorum, provided such number is not less than two.

If during the course of an Authority or Committee meeting a quorum is lost, then the
Chair shall declare that the meeting shall stand recessed or adjourned, until the date
of the next regular meeting or other meeting called in accordance with the provisions
of this by-law.

Declared State of Emergency

During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an
area over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the
Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General
Membership from meeting in person, a Member may participate in meetings
electronically and shall have the ability to:

a) register a vote;
b) be counted towards determining quorum; and
c) participate in meetings closed to the public.

During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an

area over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the
Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General

47



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

19| Page

Membership from meeting in person, any date or timeline requirement established
under any section in this by-law shall be postponed until such time as the General
Membership can reasonably address the issue.

During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an
area over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the
Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, the Authority shall implement best
practices to make meetings of the Authority open to the public in accordance with
Subsection 15(3) of the Act. Where possible, the Authority will provide for alternative
means for the public to participate in meetings electronically.

During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an
area over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the
Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General
Membership from meeting in person, any hearing or appeal dealt with in this By-Law
may be conducted electronically with provisions for applicants and their agents to
participate if the Authority decides to hold any such hearing or appeal.

In a Declared State of Emergency when electronic meetings are convened, unless under
extenuating circumstances as otherwise determined by the Chair in consultation with
the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer, any and all Delegations to the Board shall be in the
form of:

a)  written submission or

b)  written submission as well as presentation by video link.

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of the NPCA Board will occur on the third Friday of February.

Appointed members will continue to serve on the NPCA Board until the CAO /
Secretary — Treasurer receives written notice that the respective members have been
re-appointed, or the respective members have been replaced by another
appointment.

The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be held at the Annual Meeting in
accordance with the Authority’s Procedures for Election of Officers (Appendix 2). Both
the Chair and Vice-Chair shall hold office for a term of one year, and shall serve for
no more than two consecutive terms. Successors to the positions of Chair and Vice-
Chair shall be a Member from a different participating municipality from the
incumbent. Upon application by an Authority or a participating municipality, the
Minister may grant permission for a member who was appointed to the Authority by
the same participating municipality that appointed the outgoing Chair or Vice-Chair to
serve as Chair or Vice-Chair.

The General Membership shall appoint an auditor for the coming year at the Annual
General Meeting in accordance with Section 38 of the Act.

The General Membership shall appoint a financial institution to act as the Authority’s
banker by Resolution at the Annual Meeting if so required.

48



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

3.6

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

20|Page

Other matters considered at the Annual General Meeting include appointments to
Conservation Ontario, Standing and Ad Hoc Committees, Borrowing Resolution,
NPCA Signing Authorities, and approval of the schedule of meetings for the upcoming
year.

Notice of Meeting

The Chair shall call regular meetings of the Authority. Circulation of the agenda for
such meetings and the publication of the agenda on the NPCA website shall
constitute notice of said meetings and shall occur not less than five days in advance
of the meeting date. Notice of all regular or special meetings of the General
Membership or its committees shall be made available to the public as soon as
possible after its delivery to General Membership.

Notice of any meeting shall indicate the time and place of that meeting and the
agenda for the meeting.

All material and correspondence to be dealt with by the Authority at a meeting will
be submitted to the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer at least fourteen (14) days in
advance of the meeting in question.

Written notice of motion may be given by any member of the Authority and shall be
forthwith placed on the agenda of the next meeting.

When a quorum is first present after the hour fixed for a meeting, the Chair shall call
the meeting to order.

If no quorum is present fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for a meeting,
the recording secretary shall call the roll and record the names of the members
present and the meeting shall stand adjourned until the next meeting.

The business of the Authority shall be taken up in the order in which it stands on the
agenda unless otherwise decided by the Authority.

No member shall present any matter to the Authority for its consideration unless the
matter appears on the agenda for the meeting of the Authority or leave is granted
to present the matter by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present.

The following matters shall have precedence over the usual order of business:

a) a point of order

b) a matter of privilege

c) a matter of clarification

d) a motion to suspend a rule of procedure or to request compliance with the
rules of procedure

e) a motion that the question be put to a vote

f) a motion to adjourn

49



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

410

4.11

412

413

414

4.15

5.1

21| Page

The Chair may, at his/her pleasure, call a special meeting of the Authority on three
days’ written notice. That notice shall state the business of the special meeting and
only that business shall be considered unless permission is granted by two-thirds of
the members present.

With the exception of any municipal planning or regulation matter that requires an
immediate decision of the Board or during any period where an emergency has been
declared or priority business of a matter before the courts, all matters will generally
be dealt with “in person” at a Full Authority Board meeting. For those planning and
regulation matters requiring immediate attention, during any period where an
emergency has been declared and/or addressing matters before the courts, the
Chair may call a meeting of the Board via telephone conference or other
conferencing technology. Such a telephone conference meeting must have quorum
of the Board Members participating and voting will be as outlined in Appendix 3.

Any member of the Board, with 50% support of the other Board Members, may
request the Chair to call a meeting of the Board and the Chair will not refuse.

Notwithstanding Section 4.6 of this by-law, a meeting which has been interrupted
through the loss of a quorum may be reconvened without notice provided that the
meeting is reconvened on the same day.

The Chair or the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer may, by notice in writing or email, deliver
to the members so as to be received by them at least 12 hours before the hour
appointed for the meeting, a postponement or a cancelation of any meeting until the
next scheduled date for the specific committee affected.

The Chair or the CAO/Secretary-Treasurer may, if it appears that a storm or like
occurrence will prevent the Board Members from attending a meeting, postpone that
meeting by advising as many members as can be reached or, if warranted, hold the
meeting electronically provided quorum and public attendance can be met.
Postponement shall not be for any longer than the next regularly scheduled meeting
date.

Agenda for Meeting

Authority staff, under the supervision of the CAO/ Secretary — Treasurer shall
prepare for the use of members at all regular meetings of the Authority, an agenda
which shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following headings:

Approval of Agenda

Declarations of Conflict of Interest
Approval of Minutes
Correspondence

Presentations

Delegations

Consent ltems

Discussion ltems

Committee Reports

0. Notices of Motion

SOOoONOOORrWN =~

50



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

22|Page

11. New Business
12. Closed Session
13.  Adjournment

The agenda for special meetings of the Authority shall be prepared as directed by the
Chair.

Meeting management is a fundamental responsibility of the Chair. Part of this
responsibility includes agenda management. As such, it shall be the duty of the Chair,
with respect to any meetings over which he/she presides, to approve the agenda prior
to circulation to the Board and public as outlined in section 4.1 and within all legislative
reporting requirements.

The circulation of reports, letters, memos, etc. outside of the agenda shall be
distributed by the Office of the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer to all Board Members.
Documents should be provided in an electronic format whenever possible.

The business of the Board will be taken up in the order on which it appears on the
agenda unless otherwise directed by the Board Chair.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

Where a member, either on his own behalf or while acting for, by, with or through
another, has any conflict of interest, direct or indirect, in any matter and is present at
a meeting of the Authority or Standing Committee at which the matter is the
subject of consideration, the member shall:

a) prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting, disclose the interest
and the general nature thereof;

b) not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of the
matter; and

c) not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to
influence the voting on any such question.

Where a meeting is not open to the public, in addition to complying with the
requirements in Section 6.1, the Member shall forthwith leave the meeting for the
part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration.

Where the interest of a Member has not been disclosed by reason of their absence
from the particular meeting, the Member shall disclose their interest and otherwise
comply at the first meeting of the Authority or Committee, as the case may be,
attended by them after the particular meeting.

The meeting recording secretary shall record in reasonable detail the particulars of
any disclosure of conflict of interest made by members of the Authority or
Committees, as the case may be, and any such record shall appear in the
minutes/notes of that particular meeting of the Authority or of the Committee, as the
case may be.

51



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

1.7

8.1

8.2

23| Page

Notice of Motion

Except as otherwise provided in this Regulation, a notice of motion to be made at an
Authority or Committee meeting shall be given in writing and shall be delivered to the
CAO / Secretary-Treasurer not less than seven (7) business days prior to the date
and time of the meeting, to be included in the agenda for the Authority or Committee
meeting at which the motion is to be introduced.

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer shall include such notice of motion in full in the
agenda for the meeting concerned.

Reports of Committees included in the Authority agenda shall constitute notice of
motion with respect to any matter contained in such reports and recommended by
any such Committee for adoption by the Authority.

Staff reports in the Authority agenda not having been considered by any Committee
for adoption, shall constitute notice of motion for the purposes of any motion brought
to the Authority with respect thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any motion or other business may be introduced for
consideration of the Authority provided that it is made clear that to delay such motion
or other business for the consideration of an appropriate Standing Committee would
not be in the best interest of the Authority and that the introduction of the motion or
other business shall be upon an affirmative vote of the majority of the members of the
Authority present.

Any motion called from the Chair and for whatever reason deferred in three
successive regular meetings of the Authority or Committee which is not proceeded
with shall be deemed to be withdrawn.

Reconsideration of a motion previously adopted by the Authority requires a two-thirds
majority of the Board (i.e. based on a membership of 11 voting Members, 8 or more
Members present equals two thirds majority).

Delegations

Any person or organization desiring an opportunity to address the Authority may make
a request in writing to the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer fourteen (14) days in advance
of a scheduled meeting if such request is to be included in the agenda of that meeting.
A detailed brief of their presentation, including any presentation materials to be used,
outlining the request/direction the presenter is seeking from the Standing Committee
or the Board and if applicable, the name, address and telephone number of any
person(s) or organization which he or she represents. The brief will form part of the
official record of the proceedings of Committee or the Board and therefore will be a
public document.

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer is empowered to seek clarifications from the person

or organization if the submitted statement is ambiguous and/or requires further
explanation.

52



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

9.

10.

10.1

24| Page

Any person or organization requesting an opportunity to address the Authority but not
having made a written request to do so in accordance with Section 8.1 may appear
before a meeting of the Authority but will be heard only if approved by a ruling of the
majority of the Board Members at the meeting.

It will be at the discretion of the NPCA Board Chair, in consultation with the CAO /
Secretary - Treasurer, to determine whether the delegation is an appropriate matter
to be considered by the Board.

The Board Chair, in consultation with the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer will maintain
the right to refuse any delegation request, regardless of having the notice
requirements met, for reasons they identify, including, but not limited to, agenda
/meeting management and issues outside of NPCA mandate.

It shall be the responsibility of the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer to communicate this
decision to the individual(s) applying for a delegation.

Board Members maintain the right to overturn such decision, by a proper motion
moved by and seconded by and carried by a majority.

A representative of a participating municipality of the Authority, duly authorized by
resolution of such council, shall be heard as of right, and further any member of the
Authority shall be heard as of right.

Delegations/Presentations shall be limited to a time of not more than five (5) minutes.
Board Members may limit or extend the time allowed for a presentation by a majority
vote.

Presentations shall adhere to the rules of order noted under Delegations.

Delegations must abide by the provisions of the administrative by-law and maintain
an acceptable decorum at meetings. Delegations will accept any decisions of the
Board Chair and not enter into cross debate with members, other delegations, or staff.
Any discourse between members and the delegation will be limited to members
asking questions for clarification and obtaining additional, relevant information only.

Electronic Meetings and Participation

Electronic meetings are permitted and the Meeting Procedures identified in this by-
law apply.

A Member can participate electronically in a meeting that is open or closed to the
public and in either case may be counted in determining whether or not a quorum of
members is present at any point in time. Electronic meetings must permit all
participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting. For open
electronic meetings, the public must be able to attend the meeting electronically and
be able to observe all that Members can hear and see at the meeting.

Meetings with Closed Sessions

A Meeting or part of a Meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter being
considered is:

53



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

25|Page

a) the security of the property of the NPCA,;

b)  personal matters about an identifiable individual(s), including NPCA employees;
c) aproposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the NPCA,;

d) labour relations, Human Resource or employee negotiations;

e) litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals,

affecting the NPCA,;

f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose;

g) a matterin respect of which a council, board, committee or other body may hold
a closed meeting under another act.

h)  information explicitly supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board by
Canada, a province or territory or a Crown agency of any of them;

i) a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations
information, supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board, which, if
disclosed, could reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the
competitive position or interfere significantly with the contractual or other
negotiations of a person, group or persons, or organization.

i) a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that
belongs to the municipality or local board and has monetary value or potential
monetary value; or

k) a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any
negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the municipality or
local board.

A meeting shall be closed to the public if the subject matter relates to the consideration
of a request under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
Act and shall occur only if the designated head of the Authority for the purposes of
MFIPPA is present.

Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, the
members shall state by resolution during the open session of the meeting that there
will be a meeting closed to the public and the general nature of the matter to be
considered at the closed meeting.

No vote shall be taken in a closed meeting unless it is for a procedural matter, or for
giving directions or instructions to officers, employees or agents of the Authority or
persons retained under contract with the Authority. Confidential minutes will be taken
in closed session.

Any materials presented to the Board Members during a closed meeting will be
returned to the CAO / Secretary-Treasurer prior to departing from the meeting.

A Meeting of the Board may be closed to the public if the following conditions are both
satisfied:

a) The meeting is held for the purpose of educating or training the Members.
b) At the meeting, no Member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a
way that materially advances the business or decision making of the Board.

All deliberations while in Closed Session shall remain confidential unless otherwise
agreed upon by a majority vote of the Board.

54



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

1. Vote

11.1

11.2

11.3

1.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10.

26| Page

On a tie vote, the motion is lost;

The Chair of the Board shall only vote in a Full Authority Board meeting to break a tie
or when a Recorded Vote is requested.

The presiding Standing Committee Chairs shall only vote in the event of a tie or when
a recorded vote is requested.

A majority vote of the members present at any meeting is required upon all matters
coming before the meeting.

Where a member has been appointed by Minister as a representative of the
agricultural sector, the member shall not vote on: a resolution to enlarge an authority’s
area of jurisdiction; a resolution to amalgamate the Authority with another
conservation authority; a resolution to dissolve the Authority; or, a resolution related
to any budgetary matter.

Interrelated motions shall be voted on in the following order:

a) motions to refer the matter, and

b) if no motion under clause (a) is carried, the order for voting on the remaining
motions shall be:
i) amending motion;
ii) the original motion.

Unless a member requests a recorded vote, a vote shall be by a show of hands or
such other means as the Chair may call. Before a vote is taken, any member may
require a recorded vote and it shall be taken by alphabetical surname with the Chair
voting last. On a recorded vote, each member will answer “yes” or “no” to the
question or will answer “abstain” if the said member does not wish to vote. If any
Member abstains from voting, they shall be deemed to have voted in opposition to
the question, and where the vote is a recorded vote, their vote shall be recorded
accordingly by the secretary. A recorded vote may only be called at a meeting of
Board of Directors and shall not be called at a meeting for a committee thereof.

At the meeting of the Authority at which the levy is to be approved, the Chair shall
at the appointed time during the meeting, call the roll of members present, and
having been advised by the Secretary-Treasurer of those present and the respective,
eligible weighted votes, conduct the roll call vote to approve of non- matching levy
by a weighted maijority of the members present and eligible to vote. (see O. Reg.
139/96)

Where a question under consideration contains more than one item, upon the
request of any member, a vote upon each item shall be taken separately.

A vote on any planning or regulation matter dealt with through a telephone
conference meeting, shall be a recorded vote.

55



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

12.

121

12.2

27| Page

If a vote is required, upon circumstances described in Section 4.11, the Chair may
direct the CAO / Secretary - Treasurer to conduct a “telephone or email survey” and
record the vote.

E-mail voting is not a preferred practice and should not replace the deliberative
benefits of face to face meetings. In extenuating circumstances, however, email
voting may be used to conduct the business.

E-mail votes may only be considered if the motion to be considered is time sensitive
and the Board is unable to meet to consider the matter in a timely fashion and/or
establish quorum. Email votes may not be used for motions that require secret
ballots.

In the event that a Chair of a committee wishes to initiate a process of e-mail voting
on a motion, she/he shall adhere to the following process:

a) The Chair shall write to members of the committee with the text of the motion
and any supporting materials to determine whether or not there is sufficient
support for conducting an e-mail vote.

b) If at least 75 percent of the members of the committee indicate, in writing within
48 hours, that an e-mail vote is acceptable, the Chair shall notify members of
the committee that e-mail voting shall proceed. The first two members of the
committee who respond in the affirmative shall be deemed to be the mover and
seconder of the motion.

c) If the criteria outlined in 11.14 b) are not met, an e-mail vote shall not be
permitted.

d) Committee members shall then have 48 hours to vote on the motion.
e) Once every member of the committee has voted by e-mail, or after 48 hours
have passed, the chair shall disclose the vote totals to the entire committee via

e-mail and declare the motion carried or defeated.

f)  The results of any voting conducted via e-mail shall be recorded in the minutes
at the next meeting of the committee along with the wording of the motion.

Minutes

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer shall undertake to have a recording secretary in
attendance at meetings of the Authority and each Standing Committee. The
recording secretary will make a record in the form of Minutes of the meeting
proceedings and in particular shall record all motions considered at the meeting.

Minutes of all meetings shall include the time and place of the meeting and a list of
those present and shall state all motions presented together with the mover and

56



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

12.3

12.4

12.5

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

14.

141

28| Page

seconder.

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer shall send out the minutes of Board meetings to
each member of the Authority.

The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer shall, following Full Authority Board meetings,
ensure that local area municipalities are notified of any resolutions affecting areas
within their jurisdiction.

The CAOQO / Secretary-Treasurer shall ensure that all meeting minutes are posted to
the NPCA website.

Live Streamed / Recorded Full Authority Meetings

The NPCA may live stream and/or make video recordings of all or part of its Full
Authority meeting(s) available to the public but is not obliged to do so. Where in the
discretion of the NPCA, a Full Authority meeting is live-streamed and/or recorded by
video, the following principles shall apply:

At the start of the Full Authority meeting, the Chair shall advise all in attendance that
the meeting is being recorded and/or live-streamed.

The Chair shall further advise those in attendance that delegates are solely
responsible for all statements of fact, opinion, or of mixed fact and opinion, which
they express at the Full Authority meeting. This applies whether the delegate's
statements are made orally or included in written materials provided by the delegate.
No endorsement by the NPCA of a delegate's statements may be implied or inferred
from the communication of the statements during the course of the Full Authority
meeting, or on account of the NPCA having granted permission to the delegate to
make a presentation at the Full Authority meeting.

Wherever possible, the NPCA will advise all delegates in advance of the Full
Authority meeting that their presentation may be live-streamed and the recording
archived for public viewing.

Subject to the discretion of the Chair, the goal of the NPCA will be to post, within
two business days of meeting, the archived live stream video.

A recorded video of a Full Authority meeting is not an official record of that meeting.

The official record of the Full Authority meeting shall consist solely of the Minutes
approved by the Full Authority Board.

General

All matters not specifically provided for in this By-law shall be regulated in

57



APPENDIX 1 to Report No. FA-02-23

accordance with the parliamentary procedures outlined in Bourinot’s Rules of Order.

1.0 Approval of By-law and Revocation of Previous By-law(s)

Previous Administrative By-Laws are hereby revoked upon approval of this by-Law by the
Board of Directors.

Signed:

February 17, 2023

Chandra Sharna Date
Chief Administrative Officer/
Secretary-Treasurer

February 17, 2023

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX, Chair Date

29| Page

58



2.0 Appendices to the Administrative By-law

Appendix 1 - Code of Conduct

1.0 Background

The Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority demands a high level of integrity
and ethical conduct from its Board of Directors. As such, a written Code of Conduct
helps to ensure that Board members share a common basis for generally
acceptable conduct. Such formalized standards provide a reference guide to
supplement legislative parameters within which Board members must operate
and enhance public confidence that Board members will operate from a base of
integrity, honesty, justice and courtesy.

The Code of Conduct is a general standard. It augments the laws which govern the
behaviour of Board members, and it is not intended to replace personal ethics.

The Code of Conduct will also assist Board members in dealing with confronting
situations not adequately addressed or that may be ambiguous in Authority
resolutions, regulations or policies and procedures.

2.0 General

32|Page

2.0 The Code of Conduct applies to Members of the NPCA Board of Directors and public

21

appointees to Committees. The agricultural representative appointed by the Minister
will be required to follow the provincial ethical framework set out for government
public appointees in the Management Board of Cabinet's Agencies and
Appointments Directive.

Satisfactory police criminal records checks are required for candidates selected for
citizen appointment to advisory committees.

All Board members shall be cognizant of their position and the trust and influence
afforded. They shall serve in a conscientious and diligent manner that ensures they
are operating in a manner that does not use the influence of office for any purpose
other than for the exercise of their official duties and does not violate trust
relationships.

2.2 All Board Members and members of Committees will adhere to this Code of Conduct

and:

a) Uphold the mandate, vision and mission of the Authority;

b) Consider the Authority’s jurisdiction in its entirety, including their appointing
municipality;

c) Respect Confidentiality;

d) Approach all Authority issues with an open mind, with consideration for the
organization as a whole;

e) Exercise the powers of a Board member when acting in a meeting of the
Authority;

59



f) Respect the democratic process and respect decisions of the Board of
Directors,

g) Declare any direct pecuniary interest, conflict of interest or indirect/apparent
interest when one exists or may exist in the near future; and;

h) Conduct oneself in a respectful, courteous and professional manner and
refrain from disparaging the Authority or impugning motives against any
Director or any Authority staff.

3.0 Conflict of Interest Guidelines

All Board Members commit themselves and the Authority to ethical, businesslike and
lawful conduct when acting as an individual Board member or as the full Board of
Directors. Board members are bound by the Board Member Code of Conduct
Conflict of Interest provisions as well as the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. These
policies are intended to assist Board members in understanding their responsibilities
and obligations.

A conflict of interest is any situation where a member's intents, activities or interests
are incompatible or in conflict with his or her Board member responsibilities. Avoiding
and preventing situations that could give issue to a conflict or the appearance or
perception of a conflict is one of the most important ways that the NPCA remains a
trusted organization with the public.

A Board member is in a conflict of interest in any situation where their personal
interest interferes, appears to interfere, or could potentially interfere in any way with
the interests of NPCA.

3.1 Review

3.1.1 The Authority shall complete a review of the Code of Conduct, The Municipal Conflict

of Interest Act as well as Conflict of Interest guidelines as part of the Board Member
orientation at a minimum with further training as required.

Failure to attend the orientation/workshop by Board Members does not absolve
Members of responsibility under the Act or NPCA Code of Conduct.

3.2 Pecuniary Interest

Board Members should declare a conflict of interest when , either on their own
behalf or while acting for, by, with or through another, has any pecuniary interest,
direct or indirect, in any matter and is present at a meeting of the Authority or any
Advisory Board or Committee at which the matter is the subject of consideration.

3.2.1 Chair’s Conflict of Interest or Pecuniary Interest

33| Page

Where the Chair of a meeting discloses a conflict of interest with respect to a matter
under consideration at a meeting, the Vice-Chair shall be appointed to chair that
portion of the meeting.

60



3.3 Gifts and Benefits

Board Members shall not accept any fees, gifts, hospitality, social gifts or personal
benefits that are connected directly or indirectly with the performance of duties.

3.4 Participation in Decision-making

Board members should declare a conflict of interest and recuse themselves from any

review or decision-making process in which the Board member’s participation may

result in a reasonable apprehension of bias or conflict of interest.
Apprehension of Bias: legal scholars have been able to document a few circumstances
from which a reasonable apprehension of bias may be found and have suggested the
following categories:

decision-maker reviewing own earlier decision;

interested parties selecting decision-maker;

pecuniary interest in the outcome of the decision;

existing or previous association between decision-maker and an interested party;

bias through legal or other advisor;

prejudgment; and

attitudinal bias demonstrated by the conduct or words of the decision-maker

3.5 Involvement in Outside Activities

Board members should declare a conflict of interest if involvement in outside
activities does, or would appear to be, incompatible with their responsibilities and
duties or that could call into question their independent exercise of judgement,
integrity and impartiality.

3.6 Closed Meetings

Where a meeting is not open to the public, a Board member who has declared a
conflict of interest shall leave the meeting for the part of the meeting during which
the matter is under consideration.

If the declaration occurred in closed session, the Board member shall declare the
conflict of interest in open session.

3.7 Board Member Absent

34|Page

Where the interest of a Board member has not been disclosed by reason of their
absence from a meeting, the Board member shall disclose their interest and
otherwise comply at the first meeting of the Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory
Board or Committee subsequent to the missed meeting.

61



3.8 Disclosing a Conflict of Interest

When a Board member wishes to declare a conflict of interest, they:

shall prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting, disclose the
conflict of interest and the general nature thereof;

shall not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of
the matter; and furthermore, if a vote is occurring, shall leave the room for
the duration of the item

shall not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to
influence the voting on any such question.

shall provide a written declaration of the interest or conflict of interest to the
recording secretary.

a)

b)

c)

d)

For an indirect pecuniary interest — see Section 2 of the Municipal Conflict of Interest
Act. For a direct or deemed pecuniary interest — see Section 3 of the Municipal
Conflict of Interest Act.

3.9 Disclosure Registry

3.9.1

3.9.2

Where a Board member, has disclosed an interest referred to in
Section 5 of the Municipal Confilict of Interest Act, 1990 at a meeting,
the Director shall file a written statement with the recording secretary.

Where a Board member, has disclosed an interest and filed a written
statement with the Recording Secretary, as required by subsection
3.18(1), the Recording Secretary, shall:

a) file the written statement by the Board member in the Conflict of
Interest Registry;

b) record the interest in the minutes of the meeting;

c) file a record of the interest recorded in the minutes of the meeting
in the Conflict of Interest Registry; and

d) make the Conflict of Interest Registry available for public inspection.

3.10 Breach of Conflict of Interest Policy

35|Page

3.10.1

3.10.2

3.10.3

Should a Board member breach the Conflict of Interest Policy, they
shall advise the Chair and Vice-Chair, with a copy to the CAO/Secretary
Treasurer, as soon as possible after the breach.

Should a Board member allege that another Board member has
breached the Conflict of Interest Policy, the said breach shall be
communicated to the Chair and Vice-Chair, with a copy to the
CAO/Secretary Treasurer, in writing. In the absence of the Chair, or if a
Board member alleges that the Chair has breached the Conflict of
Interest Policy, the said breach shall be communicated the Vice- Chair
with a copy to the CAO/Secretary-Treasurer, in writing.

Any breach, or alleged breach, of the Conflict of Interest Policy shall be
investigated in accordance with the Enforcement of By-laws and
Policies or procedures outlined or referred to in the Authority’s
Administrative By-law.

62



4.0 Confidentiality

36| Page

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The Directors shall be governed at all times by the provisions of
the Municipal Freedom and Information and Protection of Privacy
Act.

All information, documentation, correspondence, whether hard copy,
digital or verbal including deliberations received, reviewed, and notes
taken in a closed meeting are strictly confidential.

Board members shall not disclose or release by any means to any
member of the public, either in verbal or written form, any confidential
information acquired by virtue of their office, except when required by
law to do so.

Board members shall not permit any persons, other than those who
are entitled thereto, to have access to information which is confidential.

In the instance where a Board member vacates their position on the
Board of Directors, they will continue to be bound by MFIPPA
requirements.

Particular care should be exercised in ensuring the protection of privacy
of board members, employees and third-party vendors or customers
for the following:

a) Human Resources matters;

b) Information about suppliers provided for evaluation that might
be useful to other suppliers;

c) Matters relating to the legal affairs of the Authority;

d) Information provided in confidence from an Aboriginal
community, or a record that if released could reasonably be
expected to prejudice the conduct of relations between an
Aboriginal community and the Authority;

e) Sources of complaints where the identity of the complainant is
given in confidence;

f) Items under negotiation;

g) Schedules of prices in tenders or requests for proposals;

h) Appraised or estimated values with respect to the Authority’s
proposed property acquisitions or dispositions;

i) Information deemed to be “personal information” under
MFIPPA including contact information such as email
addresses, phone numbers, addresses etc.

No information shall be released without prior consent of the Full
Board, Chair and CAO

The list above is provided for example and is not exhaustive.

63



5.0 Use of Authority Property

5.1

No Board member shall use for personal purposes any Authority
property, equipment, supplies, or services of consequence other than
for purposes connected with the discharge of Authority duties or
associated community activities of which the Authority has been
advised.

6.0 Work of Political Nature

6.1

No Board member shall use Authority facilities, services or

property for his/her election or re- election campaign. No Board
member shall use the services of Authority employees for his/her
election or re-election campaign during hours in which the
employees are in the paid employment of the Authority.

7.0 Conduct at Authority Meetings

71

7.2

During meetings, Board members shall conduct themselves with civility,
respect and the decorum becoming of the office. Respect for delegations
and for fellow Board members requires that all Board members show
courtesy and not distract from the business of the Authority during
presentations and when others have the floor.

No Board member at any meeting of the Authority shall:

a) Speak in a manner that is discriminatory in nature based on an
individual’'s race, ancestry, place of origin, ethnic origin,
citizenship, creed, sex, sexual orientation, age, colour, marital
status, family status or disability;

b) Leave their seat or make any noise or disturbance while a vote
is being taken or until the result is declared;

c) Interrupt a member while speaking, except to raise a point of
order or a question of privilege;

d) Speak disrespectfully, disparagingly or impugn motives against
Directors, staff, or any member of the public;

e) Speak beyond the question(s) under debate;
f) Resist the rules or disobey the decision of the Board Chair on

the questions or order or practices or upon the interpretation of
the rules of the Authority.

8.0 Improper Use of Influence

37|Page

8.1

No Board member shall use the influence of his or her status for any
purpose other than the performance of the Member’s responsibilities
as a Member, and other official duties.

64



a) No Member shall use her or his status as a Board Member to
influence, or try to influence, improperly, any action or
decision of another person or entity to the private advantage
of:

(i) the Member;

(i) any member of the Member’s family;

(iii) any NPCA employee;

(iv) any friend, or business or other associate;

or attempt to secure preferential treatment beyond activities in
which Members normally engage on behalf of constituents as
part of their official duties.

b) No Member shall hold out the prospect or promise of future
advantage through or related to, the supposed influence of the
Member within the Board, in return for any decision, vote,
action or inaction.

9.0 Influence on Staff

9.1 Directors shall be respectful of the fact that staff work for the
authority as a whole and are charged with making recommendations that
reflect their professional expertise, corporate perspective, and advice
without any undue influence. Board Members shall not maliciously or
falsely injure the professional or ethical reputation of staff.

9.2 No Board member shall use, or attempt to use, the Member’s
authority or influence for the purpose of intimidating, threatening,
coercing, or otherwise improperly influencing any Authority employee
with the intent of interfering with that employee’s duties, including the
duty to disclose improper activity.

10.0 Business Relations
10.1  No Director shall borrow money from any person(s) or company which
does business with the Authority unless such person(s) or company is
a financial institution and is regularly in the business of lending money.

10.2 No Director shall act as a paid agent before the Authority, the Executive
Committee or an Advisory Board or committee of the Authority.

11.0 Encouragement of Respect for the Authority and its Regulations

11.1  Directors shall represent the Authority in a respectful manner and
encourage public respect for the Authority and its Regulations.

11.2 Board members shall accurately communicate the decisions of the
Board, even if they disagree with the Board decision, such that respect
for the decision-making process of the Board is fostered.

38| Page

65



12.0 Harassment

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

The Authority has a legal responsibility to maintain a work environment
free of violence and harassment, consistent with the Ontario
Occupation Health & Safety Act, and consistent with Authority’s
“Workplace Violence & Harassment Prevention Policy’.

All persons are to be treated fairly in the workplace in an environment
free of discrimination and of personal and sexual harassment.
Harassment of another Director, staff or any member of the public is
misconduct.

Examples of harassment that will not be tolerated by the Authority
include but are not limited to: verbal or physical abuse, threats,
derogatory remarks, jokes, innuendo or taunts related to an
individual’s race, religious beliefs, colour, gender, physical or mental
disabilities, age, ancestry, place of origin, marital status, source of
income, family status or sexual orientation, whether in person,
electronic or media.

The Authority will not tolerate the display of pornographic, racist or
offensive signs or images; practical jokes that result in awkwardness
or embarrassment; unwelcome invitations or requests, whether indirect
or explicit and any other prohibited grounds under the provisions of the
Ontario Human Rights Code.

13.0 Breach of Conduct

39|Page

13.1

13.2

13.3

Should a Board member breach the Code of Conduct, they are
responsible to advise the Chair, Vice-Chair, with a copy to the
CAO/Secretary-Treasurer within 24 hours of the event.

Should a Board member allege that another Board member has
breached the Code of Conduct, the said breach will be communicated
to the Chair or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chair with a copy to the
CAO/Secretary-Treasurer.

The Board member alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct will
be given the opportunity to speak to the issue.

13.4 Should it be concluded, based on established procedures that a Board

member has breached the Code of Conduct, a letter will be forwarded
to the representative’s appointing municipal Council, by the Authority
Board Chair or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chair, advising of said
breach. The decision for the Board member to continue representing
their municipality will be determined by the appointing municipal
Council.

66



14.0 Interpretation

14.1 Board members of the Authority seeking clarification of any part of
this should consult with the Board Chair, Vice Chair or the full Board.

Appendix 2 - Procedure for Election of Officers

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

40| Page

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair

Chair for Election of Officers (Board Chair and Vice-Chair)

An individual other than a Board Member of Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority will assume the position of Chair, pro temp, for the purpose of Election of
Officers. The CAO / Secretary-Treasurer, or designate, assumes this position.

Appointment of Scrutineers

The appointment of scrutineers is required for the purpose of counting ballots should
an election be required. All ballots will be destroyed by the scrutineers afterwards.
The appointment of scrutineers requires a mover and seconder by Board Members
of the Authority.

Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

The CAO / Secretary — Treasurer or designate advises that the election will be
conducted, as follows:

- In accordance with the Act and the Administrative By-law Section C: Meeting
Procedures, subsection 3.3, elections shall be conducted in the following
order:

i. Election of the Chair, who shall be a Member appointed by a
participating Municipality to the Authority

ii. Election Vice-Chair, who shall be Members appointed by a
participating Municipality to the Authority.

- Only current Board Members of the Authority may vote;

- Nominations will be called three (3) times and will only require a mover;
- The closing of nominations will require both a mover and a seconder;

- Each Board Member nominated will be asked if there will accept the

nomination. The Board Member must be present to accept the nomination;

- In the event of an election, each nominee will be permitted not more than
three (3) minutes to speak for the office, in the order of the alphabetical
listing of his or her surnames;

- Upon the acceptance by nominees for the position of office, ballots will be

67



41|Page

distributed to the Board Members for the purpose of election. A Member’s
choice for a nominee will be written on the ballot and the appointed
scrutineers for the counting of the ballots will collect the ballots;

A majority vote will be required for election. If there are more than two nominees,
and upon the first vote no nominee receives the majority required for election, the
name of the person with the least number of votes will be removed from further
consideration for the office and new ballots will be distributed. In the case of a vote
where no nominee receives the majority required for election and where two or more
nominees are tied with the least number of votes, a special vote shall be taken to
decide which one of such tied nominees’ names shall be dropped from the list of
names to be voted on in the next vote.

Should there be a tie vote between two remaining candidates, new ballots will be
distributed, and a second vote held. Should there still be a tie after the second
ballot a third vote shall be held. Should there be a tie after the third vote, the
election of the office shall be decided by lot drawn by the CAO / Secretary —
Treasurer.

68



Appendix 3 — Hearing Procedures
1.0 PURPOSE OF HEARING GUIDELINES

The purpose of the Hearing Guidelines is to reflect the changes to the 1998 Conservation Authorities
Act and provide a step-by-step process to conducting hearings required under Section 28 (12), (13),
(14), and Section 28.0.1(7) of the Conservation Authorities Act. The Act requires that the applicant be
provided with an opportunity for a hearing by the local Conservation Authority Board, or Executive
Committee (sitting as a Hearing Board) as the case may be, for an application to be refused or
approved with contentious conditions. In the case of hearings related to applications submitted
pursuant to Section 28.0.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act, the Authority must grant permission
to the applicant, provided the requirements set out under this section are met. In this scenario, a
hearing will only be held to determine conditions which will be attached to a permission. Further,
a permit may be refused if in the opinion of the Authority the proposal adversely affects the control
of flooding, pollution or conservation of land, and additional erosion and dynamic beaches. In the
case of applications submitted pursuant to Section 28.0.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act, the
Authority may refuse to grant a permit only if i) a zoning order has not been made to authorize the
development project, ii) the project is proposed to be carried out in the Greenbelt Area, and iii) if all
other prescribed requirements have not been satisfied. The Hearing Board is empowered by law
to make a decision, governed by the Statutory Powers Procedures Act.

The Hearing Rules are adopted under the authority of Section 25.1 of the Statutory Powers
Procedures Act (SPPA). The SPPA applies to the exercise of a statutory power of
decision where there is a requirement to hold or to afford the parties to the proceeding
an opportunity for a hearing before making a decision. The SPPA sets out minimum
procedural requirements governing such hearings and provides rule-making authority
for to establish rules to govern such proceedings.

The Hearing Board shall hear and decide whether the application will be approved with or without
conditions or refused. In the case of hearings related to applications submitted purposed to Section
28.0.1, the Hearing Board shall determine what conditions, if any, will be attached to the permission.

These guidelines have been prepared as an update to the October 1992 hearing guidelines and are
intended to provide a step-by-step process to conducting hearings required under Section 28 (12),
(13), (14) of the Conservation Authorities Act. Similar to the 1992 guidelines, it is hoped that the
guidelines will promote the necessary consistency across the Province and ensure that hearings
meet the legal requirements of the Statutory Powers Procedures Act without being unduly legalistic
or intimidating to the participants. Additional considerations have been included related to hearings
under Section 28.0.1 (7) of the Conservation Authorities Act.

2.0 PREHEARING PROCEDURES

21  Apprehension of Bias
In considering the application, the Hearing Board is acting as a decision-making tribunal. The
tribunal is to act fairly. Under general principles of administrative law relating to the duty of fairness,
the tribunal is obliged not only to avoid any bias but also to avoid the appearance or apprehension

of bias. The following are three examples of steps to be taken to avoid apprehension of bias where
it is likely to arise.

42 |Page

69



(a) No member of the Authority taking part in the hearing should have prior involvement with the
application that could lead to a reasonable apprehension of bias on the part of that member.
Where a member has a personal interest, the test is whether a reasonably well-informed
person would consider that the interest might have an influence on the exercise of the
official's public duty. Where a member is a municipal councillor, the Municipal Conflict of
Interest Act applies. In the case of a previously expressed opinion, the test is that of an open
mind, i.e. is the member capable of persuasion in participating in the decision making.

(b) If material relating to the merits of an application that is the subject of a hearing is
distributed to Board members before the hearing, the material shall be distributed to the
applicant at the same time. The applicant may be afforded an opportunity to distribute
similar pre-hearing material. These materials can be distributed electronically.

(c) The applicant will be given an opportunity to attend the hearing before a decision is made;
however, the applicant does not have to be present for a decision to be made.

(d) Where a hearing is required for applications submitted pursuant to Section 28.0.1 of the
Conservation Authorities Act (e.g., to determine the conditions of the permission), final
decisions on the conditions shall not be made until such a time as the applicant has been
given the opportunity to attend a hearing.

Individual Conservation Authorities shall develop a document outlining their own practices and
procedures relating to the review and reporting of Section 28 applications, including the role of staff,
the applicant and the Authority or Executive Committee as well as, the procedures for the hearing
itself. Such policy and procedures manual shall be available to the members of the public upon
request and on the Authority’s website. These procedures shall have regard for the above
information and should be approved by the Conservation Authority Board of Directors.

2.2 Application

The right to a hearing arises where staff is recommending refusal of an application or is
recommending conditions to the approval of an application. Additionally, in the case of applications
submitted pursuant to Section 28.0.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act, the Authority shall not
attach conditions to a permission unless the applicant has been given the opportunity to be heard
by the Authority. The applicant is entitled to reasonable notice of the hearing pursuant to the
Statutory Powers Procedures Act.

2.3 Notice of Hearing

The Notice of Hearing shall be sent to the applicant within sufficient time to allow the applicant to
prepare for the hearing. To ensure that reasonable notice is given, it is recommended that prior to
sending the Notice of Hearing, the applicant be consulted to determine an agreeable date and time
based on the local Conservation Authority’s regular meeting schedule.

The Notice of Hearing must contain or append the following:

(a) Reference to the applicable legislation under which the hearing is to be held (i.e., the
Conservation Authorities Act).

(b) The time, place and the purpose of the hearing. OR for Electronic Hearings:
The time, purpose of the hearing, and details about the manner in which the hearing will be
held.

43 |Page

70



(d)

(e)

(9)

Note: for electronic hearings the Notice must also contain a statement that the applicant
should notify the Authority if they believe holding the hearing electronically is likely to
cause them significant prejudice. The Authority shall assume the applicant has no objection
to the electronic hearing if no such notification is received.

Particulars to identify the applicant, property and the nature of the application which are the
subject of the hearing.

Note: If the applicant is not the landown